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Summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last

'R 1

five financial years is set out below:

“ Ve
o R #d3 REMR,
oooooooooooo

29 2016 2015 2014 2013
ooooo ooooao oooono ooooo ooooo
Y B0ee RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
(Note) (Note) (Restated)
0ooo oooo ooooo
Turnover ooo 3,0084, 716,187 1,414,524 6,488,279 10,830,133
Gross profit/(loss) oomooo 86,0 36,503 (706,918) (190,400) 1,063,016
Results from operating activities oooooo ResR K., 319,922 (7,689,352) (641,619) 524,902
Profit/(loss) before taxation oooboomoboo L5844 (127,033) (8,037,702) (1177,656) (14,605)
Income tax (expense)/credit oooooomoon (96,1,!9 ) (189,694) 1105,525 (114,657) (121,475)
Profit/(loss) for the year oooomooo 3, .24,350., (316,727) (6,932.177) (1,292,313) (136,080)

Profit/(loss) attributable to: gooomoom
Equity shareholders of the Company opoooooo 3, Legue (330,542) (6,011,184) (1183,426) (247,765)
Non-controlling interests opoog 568,00 13,815 (920,993 (108,887) 111,685
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of
China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
result of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

QD& ®ECy BV & (CA N CE

2017 was the second year for China to implement the policy of “cutting
production capacity” on the coal industry. The state-owned enterprises
sought upgrading and transformation while sparing no efforts in closing
outdated capacity nationwide. On the other hand, the environmental
protection and safety were highly valued with strict control over new
capacity. Against the backdrop of tight supply and rising demand, the
coal price bottomed out since the end of 2015 and was volatile at a high
level in 2017.

The recovery of the industry’s economic benefits laid a foundation
for cutting capacity, difficulty relief as well as transformation and
upgrading in the coal industry. However, unbalanced development of the
industry resulted in fairly low profit margin or loss making for most coal
enterprises, with loss scale of the industry still accounting for 20%.

Despite tight shipping capacity, the Group successfully turned around
from loss to profit by grasping the opportunity of coal price recovery,
working hard and making swift changes to seek breakthrough in
logistics optimisation, with substantial growth in both coal operation
and trade volume over last year.

Finally, I would like to thank all shareholders for their support to the
Company, and all colleagues of the Group for their hard work and
continuous perseverance. In 2018, we will bear in mind our mission
to move forward, and use “wisdom and perspiration” to seize market
and development opportunities, “loyalty and commitment” to address
difficulties and challenges and “confidence and courage” to focus on
operation and management, so as to achieve quality growth with more
excellent performance.

1
, Da
Chairman

27 March 2018
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The Group is a leading non-state owned thermal coal supplier in China,
and it operates an integrated coal supply chain, including coal mining,
purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal in the PRC and
shipping transportation business. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group continued to focus on these business activities and
expanded its integrated coal supply chain through upward vertical
integration.

BE E®E E

. mMmaten e Ds ySale” 'R ge, p CealBs 55 apd
Sy yngBs §ss n R Y C

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 14 July 2016, the
Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement dated
25 April 2016 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 11
July 2016) with Bo Hai Investment Limited (the “"‘,, ls€.,”), pursuant
to which the Group proposed to dispose of entire issued equity interest
in Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited and its subsidiaries
to the Purchaser. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
30 April 2017, as at 30 April 2017, save that the condition relating to the
approval of the independent shareholders to the entry of the agreement
and the transaction contemplated thereunder at an extraordinary
general meeting had been fulfilled, other conditions precedent had not
been fulfilled.

As the conditions precedent contained in the agreement were not
satisfied or otherwise waived on or before the long stop date, the Group
and the Purchaser had entered into a letter of termination dated 30
April 2017 with the effect of terminating the agreement.

—, ufs, m!tmgé ca ks gss
In 2017, the Group restarted its original coal procurement channels and
successfully exploited a procurement channel in Inner Mongolia. The
total purchase of coal in 2017 amounted to 2,834,000 tonnes, of which
857,000 tonnes for foreign trade and 1,977,000 tonnes for domestic
trade.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Enen® & entetlen ™A nhtan o "o alk d€ tapd
b ypinnn8and n'emMabaten of T o

The Group is fully implementing control on capital budget, arrange
funds reasonably and improve tax planning capability this year. The
Group promotes its informatisation construction by updating office
system, coal transportation and sales management system and human
resources system, so as to improve the Group’s informatisation and
enhance office efficiency and transparency. The Group’s governance
structure will be clearer with significantly strengthened management
and control system, and a three-level governance structure will be
clearly established to enhance management control of resources.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group owned and operated five coal mines
in the PRC. The table sets forth certain information about these coal
mines.

gopooobooon

ggogoobobobbooooooad
gooon

gogobobbobouoooobobobboooooon
gboobooboboboobbobooboob
goooobobooooooooboboooooon
goobobooboooooobobobboooon
gogobobooooooooboboooooon
oboobOoobooboboboobooobon
oooo

ooo0ooOOoobOob0ObOOobOoobDooDon
oboobOoobooooobooobooDbon
oooo

b F5hy “ek ten 552 fen
e atan oo EX PN cagp @ shits
oo ooo oo gooo gooo
(million
(sq. km) tonnes)
oooooo ooooo
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 4.3 15 Under operation
— Xingtao Coal Shanxi oog
gooboobooooo gooo
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 2.4 0.9 Under operation
— Fengxi Coal Shanxi ood
gooboobooobobo gooo
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 29 0.9 Under operation
— Chongsheng Coal Shanxi oo
gooboobooooo gooo
Xinglong Coal Xinzhou 100% 4.0 0.9 Under development
agooo Shanxi (Temporarily suspended)
gooo ooo
gooo
Hongyuan Coal Xinzhou 100% 41 0.9 Under operation
oooo Shanxi (Temporarily suspended)
oooo oono
gooao

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultant to
estimate the total coal reserves and resources as at 30 June 2016 in
accordance with the JORC code.

ooooobbooobbooobboJoreo
obobobooboooooobooboobon
obooboooo
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
gooooboood

CyA CVR AC B & C& 0000

Characteristics of the commercial coal produced by the Groups 000000000000 O0OO0OOOOOOO
operating mines are as follows:

‘{" an® g e
Nan® aq Nan® aq ES..g¢
1 Eg.g/ ES.g¢ Chen® R g8
n8heCal -®pgyCal Ceal
oooooo Dooooo Dooooao
C,a‘la[VCIg. ¢ s¢ ooog gooo goono oooo
Seam o0 4 9 9
Moisture (%) 0 0 (%) 913-1211% 2.07-2.90% 8.70-11.84%
Ash (%) 00 (%) 21.07-29.94%  18.36-30.42%  21.25-23.85%
Sulfur (%) 000 (%) 0.76-1.81% 0.31-0.84% 1.78-2.40%
Volatile Matter (%) 00000 (%) 21.96-2749%  19.90-29.49% 27.54-28.88%
Energy Content (MJ/kg) Joooooooooo 17.30-1813 17.08-22.03 20.36-22.25
5B A ((DAA oooQ
N ese s an&esﬂ(,es oooooo
Nam® qa Nam® qo AFLER
e B B |
n8he E8y  ChngRpg 8lens Yend an
Cal Cal Cal Cal Cal oh1
ooo ooo ooo
ooo oon oon
gooo gooo gooo oooo gooo 00
Nese Bs oo
Reserves as at 1 January 2017 (Mt) ooooooooooo
goooooooo
—Proven reserves 0ooooo 62.71 16.43 2918 2249 3016 160.97
—Probable reserves ooooo 12.26 2743 1951 9.53 117 69.90
Total reserves asat1January 2017(Mt) 0000000 000DO
goooooooo 7497 43.86 48.69 32.02 3133 230.87
Less: Total raw coal production [Jooooooooooooo
for the year (M) (2.17) (L90) (L98) nald00 nado0 (6.65)
Mese Bs st oooooooooooooo
3gemp, 0 (Y 00000000 ol L% 4 3,0, 3R o o
€5 4,85 ooo
Resources as at 1 January 2017 (Mt) ooooooooooo
goooooooo 11135 67.99 72.39 45,96 4178 339.47
Less: Total raw coal production [Jpoooooooooooo
for the year (Mt) 217 (L90) (L98) nald00 nadd0 (6.65)
?ese},esasa* gooooooooooooo
3Reme, 0 () 000000000 (XXX we 0" 4Reg LA 33,4
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The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at the

abovementioned mines for the years indicated:—

China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 0000 OOO 9 '

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

gopooobooon

goboooooooobooobooboooobon

fa.tn#d3 [k emE,
0D00000o0o00oooon

2@ 2016

ooooao ooooo

Ce00 L., ©s) | (000 tonnes)
Paciaalped fenbel ® oooo 0000 0ooo
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal ooboooooog q @ 417
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal oooooooooa ;9.2 722
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal ooooooooog 9% 905
Total oo 6,649 2,044

®a d3 [{emE,
goooooobooooo

0 2016
oooono googono
“e00 L., €s) | (000 tonnes)
Camnfe, atl cal path ten“et"e(\lee) goboooooo gonog gooo
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal ooooooooog , 92 271
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal oooooooooo 34 469
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal gobooooooo P 588
Total 0o 43, 1,328
Note: Per the competent persons report issued on 30 September 2011,31 OO0 00000000000 OO0O0O0OO0OCOO
May 2013 and 25 July 2016, the volume of commercial coal produced by poooboooooooooobobboooa
Huameiao Energy is calculated by a yield rate of 65% raw coal. gooobOboOooobOooooobbbooo
ooodes%»bo0o0oono
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

gooooboood

Eyleaten, nnand P R | ) (TE 48 58

The Group's exploration, mining and development expenses consist of

the following amounts:

gobbogoooon
oboboobOooooooboobooooon

®af #d3 §CmR,
goooooooooon

.0 2016
goood ogoogad
®  Boeee RMB’000
ooooo goodgod
Materials and consumables gopooooo AR 32,489
Staff cost godd 99 0k 54103
Other direct cost oooooo 4439 33,442
Overhead and others ooooooog 36 ,.,64 106,259
Evaluation fee ooo 34 1321
Total oo 69 , B 227,614
"\IA\ICA.‘!E E HREREEN
“eg, e 00
rl

eave nG d3 Qems'v

goooooooooo
N 2016
googad goodgd
®  Beee RMB’000
ooooo goodaod
Coal business oooog oy 63 608,469
Shipping transportation gooo 4.90g. 8 107,718
3,00R6, 716,187
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Coal business

China Qinfa Group Limited O 000000000 H’

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
gopooobooon

Paf #d3 {emE,
doooooooooon

2@ 2016

ooooo ooooo

000 L\ s '000 tonnes

0o oo

Coal Handling and Trading Volume of Coal Business 0O O0OO0O0O0OOO0O0O0OO ,06., 2123

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the volume of the Group's
coal handling and trading recorded a 232.6% increase as compared
with 2016. The coal selling prices during the year ended 31 December

gogooboboobobooooooobobbboooonn
ubobooooooboooobooobooobo
2326%0000000000D0DODODOODODO

oobboooobobboooooboobozo10000
gbob0Oes0o0 0 bO0O0OO0OOOOOOOOOSss
obobobogoe2e0OO0OO0OOOODOO

gboboooogoboobooboboboon
goobboooooooobobboooooon

ooobogoogo
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
gooooboood

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the PRC
domestic markets to customers, including power plants, cement plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in the
coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for use in the
combustion processes to produce steam for power and heat. Cement
plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production process. The
following table sets forth information regarding the Group's revenue
from coal business by industry segment during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016:

gogoobbobooooooooboboooaa
gogooboobobooooooobobbboooan
gooboboboooooobobbooooon
gbobobooboboboooooooooon
oboobooooboooboooooooooon
oboobOoobooboooboooooooo
obooboOoobooboooboooooooo
gooogd

a8 ,®d3 §emR,
gopooooooooog

.0 2016

googo goooo
®.€  he€ . Percentage of
f E,° revenue
ne g “#e . o *e b Revenue % of total
oo good uo goood
®  Beee oooy RMB’000 good
ooooo (e) ooooo (%)
Power plants 00O 84 06 ERL 199,329 32.8
Coal traders ooooo , B4, 390 396,042 651
Cementplantsandothers* OO0 OO0* 00 64E 3R 13,098 21
Total od 63 ([N ] 608,469 100.0

*  Others mainly represented large State-owned coal suppliers.
Shipping transportation

The segment revenue for shipping transportation from external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB148.5 million
as compared with RMB107.7 million for the same period in 2016. The
Group has recorded 37.9% increase in shipping transportation revenue
principally because of increase in freight rates and charter hire rates
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
gopooobooon

Cs 'f,'ngfs ogogoo

Cost of sales of the Group in 2017 amounted to RMB2,319.0 million, 00 00000 O0OOD0ODODODODOOOAO
representing an increase of 241.2% compared with RMB679.7 millionin ~ 2,319,000,0000 0 O O O O O O O O O
2016. The increase was due to the increase in coal handling and trading  679,700,0000 0 0241.2%0 00000 0O
volume during the year of 2017. Jdod0oodoooooooooooa

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal businesssegment: OO0 000000000 O0O0OOOO

€2t ®d3 EEmR,
000000000000

.20 2016

goooo googo

R BM [Lap RMB million

goooog gooooo

Cost of coal purchased gopbooooo -9-2R 1, 262.3
Cost of coal transportation oooooood 6, 54.4
Cost of self-produced coal goooooo 699 252.3
Materials, fuel, power ooooooooo 3 325
Staff costs ooooo 99 541
Depreciation and amortisation oooooog 4993 83.2
Others ooo B 4 82.5
Other costs oooo 111
Total cost of sales of coal business segment gooooooooooo ”yn 89 Bl 5801
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
gooooboood

The Group purchases coal mainly from the PRC market. The following
table sets forth information regarding the Group’s origins of coal based
on sales volume and revenue in 2017 and 2016:

gooobobooooooooobobboooon
goooboboboooooooobbbooooo
gobooobobooobogo

fafFd3 [k emE,
000O0O0ooooooo

. A

0 2016
2

oooon ooooo
Sags N n® Te g & | Salesvolume Revenue
oo ao oo oo
) 000 L\ Es »  Beee '000 tonnes RMB’000
b 8% € cal ooood 0o oooodo oo ooooo
China oo 6,08, 6303 2123 608,469
Oversea oo A, 16,090 - -
Total oo 06, .63 2123 608,469

The Group keeps expanding the network of suppliers to ensure a supply
of coal with reliable and stable quantity and quality.

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its key
PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed business relationships
with the majority of them over a period of not less than three years. This
enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality coal.

(ad ?'e;‘ *

The Group’s gross profit was RMB686.6 million during the year
ended 31 December 2017 as compared with gross profit of RMB36.5
million during the same period in 2016. Under the circumstances
of improvement in average selling prices of thermal coal, the Group
increased the scale of coal handling and trading volume to generate
gross profit of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5Ro 0 oM, g fand s

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's other income,
gains and losses amounted to a net gain of RMB195.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately of RMB251.8 million, as
compared with a net loss of RMB56.0 million in 2016. The increase in
other income, gains and losses in 2017 was mainly due to the one-off
gain arising from the waiver of management fee payables and safety
supervision fee payables. On 31 December 2017, a PRC state-owned
enterprise, who is responsible for providing management services and
safety supervision to Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal, has waived its
amounts due from the Group in total of approximately RMB160.8 million
and such gain has been accounted for as waiver of management fee
payables and safety supervision fee payables during the year.

Ds *,h tan Eﬁ e€s

Distribution expenses increase by 224.6% to RMB51.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017, as compared with RMB16.0 million
in 2016. The increase in distribution expenses was in line with the
increase in coal handling and trading volume during the year.

Adm.s T3 1@ Efr e€s
During the year ended 31 D

gopooobooon

gogogoobobooo

goboooooooooooboooobooooa
obOoooO0oogoaoseooo000000000
gboobooboooboboboboboobo
0 195,800,0000 0 O O OO O O251,800,000
gooobooboooooobobobbboogoo
gogoooobbboooooobobbogoo
goooooooooboobooobooboo
ooooboooboobooboboobooboo
ggooooboboooooooobobboogda
ooooboooDbieo,800,00000 00000
gbogoboboboboooooboobooo
gd

goon

obooobooooobnbgbie000,0000 0
obobob2246%0 000000000000
oboooooobogosieoocoonnonoononO
gogobooobobooobboon

goog

goboooooooooooboooobooooa
gooooooooaro,o00,000000O0OO
0o0000o0ais9,300,0000000005.5%00
oobooooooooboooboooboooDo
ooooooooboooboooo

gogn

goboooooobooboooboooboooboa
obooooooboogos4,5000000000000
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Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB3,158.3 million, representing
an increase of approximately of RMB3,488.8 million as compared with
loss of RMB330.5 million in the same period in 2016. The increase in
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was mainly
attributable to the reversal of impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment and coal mining rights, and the improvement on the
operating results.

‘b v
o ¢ WE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and strives
to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group funds its business
operations and general working capital by internally generated financial
resources and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded net current liabilities of RMB8,852.3 million.

A(CA ™ ESy WCESA D CA* A

NTIN

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial flexibility by
diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium term loans to replace
short term loans. The Group is currently negotiating with financial
institutions to renew and extend bank borrowings and consider ways to
improve the Group’'s working capital. As at 31 December 2017, the cash
and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB80.3 million (2016:
RMB24.7 million), representing an increase of 225.1%.

As at 31 December 2017, the total bank and other borrowings of the
Group were RMB6,045.9 million (2016: RMB6,043.3 million), which
were classified as current liabilities. As a result of the non-payment
of loan principal and interests of RMB2,805.7 million and RMB435.6
million respectively, borrowings amounting to RMB1,499.8 million (2016:
RMB2,473.7 million) due for repayment after one year which contain a
cross default clause that demands immediate repayment when there is
default in any bank loans repayment are classified as current liabilities.
The bank and other borrowings carried interest at rates ranging from
4.35% to 7.28% (2016: 4.35% to 13.50%) per annum.
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Except for certain matters disclosed in the Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

DE (D_-¢ NE vER E ,DED 3

_ 4yA D
DECE BE 0 | )

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

1 S

B Y% \IES-S-;' " TS

In 2018, based on an internal market-oriented mechanism, the Group
targets to achieve “higher volume and revenue as well as quality and
efficiency enhancement” by focusing on an integrated operation of
“production, transportation, sales and trade” to expand its industrial
chain and improve its supply chain, and build development drivers with
resources to achieve quality development.

g nnBaypmatene” ® L pe®sses apd ¢ ~
T Mol and pemetng aim§ s hpda,dsaten

rgu@ P ‘U‘v't hfg GFV, rr t‘pv J’fdr ten

The Group will engage advanced technicians, increase its investment,

research and development and use of production equipment and

technology, and establish a standard construction management and

control system to expand standardisation construction to the frontline

departments. The Group will improve the awareness of standardisation
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The Group will actively expand the financing platform and various
financing channels, and establish fully-functional investment
management system to strengthen the overall investment management
capabilities. The Group will strengthen assets management by
revitalising the existing assets and effectively managing and utilising
assets to improve its operating efficiency, and improve its financial
analysis and decision-making capabilities by evaluating its business
and financial position to better support its operating decision-making.

™ peling k nu“,s,(,es s & m a"ds  g® nng &
s, _rpvfands +n8 e e nevefated
The Group will gradually adjust its organisational structure according
to the changes in the objectives and business development to achieve
a streamlined and efficient management model with balanced
authority and responsibility as well as separated implementation
and supervision. Moreover, based on the objectives and business
requirements, the Group will continue to optimise and enhance its
human resources management system, organisational development,
recruitments, remuneration packages and etc., so as to improve its core
talent development scheme.

e o, t e nds téde & anda 'R p5eC kgne @,
anda *s taneyppe B
The Group will make dynamlc adjustment to the product structure
based on market demand and customer orientation to maximise their
values. The Group will monitor industrial development in a timely
manner, strengthen the integration of upstream resources, seek coal
mine merger and acquisition opportunities, with an aim to enrich the
quality of the Company to meet market and customer demand and
generate higher efficiency.
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The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “C (C,& ") as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the * s t,,gv ,§s ”) during the financial year ended
31 December 2017. '

%
E Y3 EESA D E KB A 3
As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 2,027 employees. The
Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to motivate
its staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to
the basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to staff members
with outstanding performance.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are also subject to
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
In accordance with the relevant national and local labour and social
welfare laws and regulations, subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC are required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly
social insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance.
Subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong have
participated in mandatory provident fund scheme, if applicable, in
accordance with Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Moreover, as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 June
2009 (the “Prospectus”), the Company adopted a pre-IPO share option
scheme and a post-IPO share option scheme in June 2009 to incentivise
and retain staff members who have made contribution to the success
of the Group. The Directors believe that the compensation packages
offered by the Group to its staff are competitive in comparison with
market standards and practices.

Annual Report 2017 00000 OO

goon

goobobooooooobobbboooon

gboooooooooboboboboon

ooooomoooooooooooboo
oooboobomoobobobooooon

googd

gboboobobobobobooooon
20270000 O0oO0obbobobooOooboboOoo
oboobooobooboooboooooooo
ob0oooooboobOooboobooDbOOon
gbooogano

goooboboboooooooobbbooooo
gooobooooooobbbooooon
oboboboobobooboooooboobon
obobobOoobooboooooooooon
obOoobOoobooooobooboooboon
gboboboboooooobobobboooooaonn
goooooooooboobboobooooouo
oo

gboouoooooboooooooooon
gobooomooobmoobooboooon
goooboboooooooobbbooooo
gooobooooooobobbboooon
oboboboooboobooooooooDbon
ob0ooooobooooooooboonbon
obooboobOoooooon



China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 0000000

D* EC @ & E*

The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “A,¢ §s ") or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

—~ ACASHY RV
A summary of the Group's result for each of the five years ended 31
December 2017 and the Group's assets, liabilities and equity as at 31
December 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 are set out on page 4 of this
report.

*WCNASE, SA E @ ™ EDE ¥ - NE
Cy, A VS S EDSEC™ ES
During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor any

of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company.

D EC R &
d

The Directors during the year of 2017 and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

EG , '# D& s

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. WANG Jianfei

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (appointed with effect from 12 April 2017)
Mr. LIU Jinghong (appointed with effect from 12 April 2017)

n® ; n® nhen® % y ' D Ls-
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. XING Zhiying
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Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of shareholders
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken
into account in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, Mr. HUANG
Guosheng, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen and Mr. XING Zhiying will retire by rotation
in accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles. All retiring Directors,
being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting.

D' EC §§ &SR  CECy® AC S

None of the Dlrectors who are proposed for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

P ES &

EC
(ﬁ E, A DCy* AC S

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus), the
details of which are set forth in the paragraphs under “Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
and any of its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “ s t,.g® #(is ") and the Board considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Bb;'lA NCA DE A S-;; D!Ecbi&A DSE 5:
(EE

Brief blographlcal details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 45 to 49 of this report.

D‘PECQS.’A\IDCiE_EEC"' E’S- B ESS
v {SRESA b\bEBE -w'-'

As at 31 December 2017, the mterests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “&-y,")), which were required
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “ & [Ca& ")
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 401 Nil
oooono oooono O ad
Mr. XU Da* Beneficial Owner 45135,251 Nil 181 Nil
goog= oooono O ad
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 45,000,000 Nil 1.80 Nil
goooo ooooooooano O ad
Mr. LIU Jinghong Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,000,000 Nil 0.08 Nil
oooono 0ooooooozn O ad
Mr. HUANG Guosheng Beneficial owner (Note 3) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
ooooo 0o00ooooooasno O ad
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 4) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
gooon ooooooooan g d
Mr. XING Zhiying Beneficial owner (Note 5) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
oooono 000oooooso O ad
Notes: ogo
1. The beneficial interest of 45,000,000 shares includes 20,000,000 shares 1. 45,0000000 000000000 OOOOOO
that may be issued pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to ooooocooooooboboooooooo
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015. goooobooobbooobobo?2o,000,000
gooo
2. The beneficial interest represents 2,000,000 shares that may be issued 2. 000000000000 O00O0O0C0OO00O0O
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LIU Jinghong gooooooooooboooooobooboo
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015. gooo0ogz2.o00,0000000
3. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued 3. 000000000000 O0O0O0O0OO0O00O0O
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. HUANG Guosheng gbooobbooobobooboboobboo
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015. gooooosoo,0cooddn
4. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued 4. O000000000O00O00O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen gbooobooobbooobbooobbooo
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015. gooooosoo,cooddn
5. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued 5. 000000000000 O0O0O0O0OO0O00O0O
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. XING Zhiying goodooooooooooooboobooboo
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015. googooosoo,oootnnn
*  Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the Board. * pOQO0o0OO0oobooboooobooo
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors L OOOOO0OOOOO0OOOOOOOOOONO
or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positionsin 00000000000 OCOO0OO0OO0OO
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its UOO0OO00O000O0O000OO0OOO0O0O0O0OOXV
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) 00000000 O000COO0O0OM@OOOO
which were required (a) to be recorded in the register required to be O 0O0O0352000000000000000O0
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO;or (b)tobe O0O0MIODOOOOOOOODODOOOOO0O
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant tothe Model OO OOOOO

Code.
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As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
goooooooaid goooo a

Interest in a controlled 1154,000,000 Nil 46.28 O

corporation O

o0o0oooooo
Fortune Pearl (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,154,000,000 Nil 46.28 Nil
oooooid ogoooo O O
China Minsheng Banking Beneficial owner 215,000,000 Nil 8.62 Nil

Corp. Ltd.
gdoooooooooo ooooao O O
ooo
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Other than pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Share Option Scheme detailed in Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

b AG, ¥ ESNR ES @

P YE A & B D
SEc™ ES ’
The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount of
HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2017, which was convertible
into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial conversion price of
HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to adjustments). Assuming
the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to the PSCS
at the initial conversion price, a total of 118,000,000 conversion
shares will be issued. The PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The
sole ultimate beneficial owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua,
who is the father of Mr. Xu Da and the controlling shareholder of the
Company.
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Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s companies
shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her
in the execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto
pursuant to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31 December
2017 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

(]
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The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees is
based on their performance, duties and responsibilities, qualifications
and competence displayed. The Group has adopted a performance-
based rewarding system to motivate its employees and such system
is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-
end bonuses will be offered to those staff members with outstanding
performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to
the Group's operating results, individual experience, performance and
responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by companies of
comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

N
AA(E E Cy® AC &
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers were as follows:

S
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Purchases ooag
—the largest supplier oooooo 18.2%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate oooogooog 70.4%
Sales oogd
—the largest customer ooood 12.0%
— five largest customers in aggregate ooooooo 50.3%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Ch,\EC ED® ASAC 4 &

"‘veﬁe dds rra le®pntee "’,, ‘ﬂ‘ne'ves tn Nan& engg‘n‘a
ne»vr\a tena l+ad-ng .m.ed

On 25 April 2016 and 11 July 2016, the Group entered into a share sale
and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement with Bo Hai
Investment Limited (“Ba Ya- #s "® ,¥), a related company wholly
owned by Mr. Xu Jihua, the controlling shareholder of the Company
and a close family member of Mr. Xu Da, an executive Director and
chairman of the Company respectively in relation to the disposal of
entire equity interest in Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (“
k'“-a n®.m teml {e, y) at a consideration of RMB176,740,000.
The principal activities of HK Qinfa International Group are coal mining,
purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal and shipping
transportation in the PRC. The proposed transaction was subject to
certain conditions precedent as stated in the share sale and purchase
agreement. At 30 April 2017, save that the condition relating to the
approval of the independent shareholders to the entry of the agreement
and the transaction contemplated thereunder at an extraordinary
general meeting had been fulfilled, other conditions precedent had
not been fulfilled. Therefore, the Group and Bo Hai Investment had
entered into a letter of termination dated 30 April 2017 with the effect
of terminating the agreement.

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions
(other than continuing connected transactions that are exempted under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December
2017:
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On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“k‘":a a8s ds”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, each member of the
China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus), and their respective
equity interest holders (which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU
Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being Controlling Shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Prospectus)) entered into the Structure
Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a term of 10 years pursuant
to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to
each member of the China Qinfa Group for the exclusive management
and operation of the coal operation business and the inland shipping
transportation business of the China Qinfa Group, and all economic
benefits and risks arising from the business of the China Qinfa Group
are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further details of the Structure
Contracts are set forth in the section headed “Reorganisation and the
Structure Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant to the
Rule 14A105 of the Listing Rules to the Company for all transactions
under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance with the
applicable announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions for the Company
were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's
business; (ii) in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and
(iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than those available to or from independent third parties.
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Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed that (i)
the transactions carried out during 2017 have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions
carried out during 2017 have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa Logistics;
(iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have been entered into on
the same terms as the existing Structure Contracts and are fair and
reasonable so far as the Group is concerned and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole; and (iv) no dividends or other distributions
have been made by any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity
interest holders.

The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus)
and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus). Having
considered the demand for coal imported from overseas into China
and the expansion of the Group's overseas coal operation business,
the Directors strategically planned to centralise the management and
operation of the Group's coal business in China and overseas markets
and determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage and
operate the coal operation business in China through the establishment
of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“k‘";a ,gsé s ”), a member of Hong
Kong Qinfa Group and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in February 2008.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, after verbal consultations with the
relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai at which the Group
operated its coal business, the Directors understood that the PRC
governmental authorities did not grant Coal Operation Certificates to
foreign equity controlled companies as a matter of practice. In addition,
according to (i) Article 7 of the Regulations on the Management of
Waterway Transport of the PRC promulgated by the State Council on
12 May 1987 and revised on 27 December 2008 and (ii) the Guidance of
Foreign Investment (Amended 2007) and after the verbal consultations
with the relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai, the Directors
understood that the PRC laws and regulations prohibited the issue
of Waterway Transportation Licences to foreign equity controlled
companies. These views had been confirmed by the PRC legal advisers
of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and operate the
coal operation business in China, the Engagement Agreements and
the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the Prospectus) (collectively the
‘Sl 1€ Capla ¢7)were entered into under which all the business
activities of China Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa
Logistics and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Pursuant to the
equity transfer agreements dated 25 October 2010, 15 December 2010
and 17 December 2010, equity interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa Trading
Co., Ltd., Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd.
and D
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The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial results
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and economic
benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa Logistics. In addition, all the
directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be
nominated by Qinfa Logistics. Through its control over the directors of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is able
to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business, operations
and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
S0 as to ensure due implementation of the Structure Contracts. The
Structure Contracts also enable Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over
and to acquire the equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time as
permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with an undertaking
from the Controlling Shareholders to provide to Qinfa Logistics all the
consideration received pursuant to any such acquisition. Based on the
Structure Contracts, the Directors consider that, notwithstanding the
lack of equity ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa Logistics
is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this basis, the financial position and
operating results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are
included in the Group’'s Consolidated Financial Statements.

As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the Company’s subsidiaries, and
their financial position and operating results are consolidated in the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements. The revenue and total
asset value subject to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts
amounted to approximately RMB98,180,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 and approximately RMB124,778,000 as of 31 December
2017, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and provide for
the resolution of disputes through arbitration in accordance with the
arbitration rules of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in force at that time (the “CE AC A, k.tg 1. §s”)in
China. Accordingly, the Structure Contracts would be interp;reted in
accordance with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved
by arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.
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There are risks involved with the operation of the Group under the
Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the Directors, if the
Structure Contracts are considered to be in breach of any existing or
future PRC laws or regulations, the relevant regulatory authorities would
have broad discretion in dealing with such breach, including:

— imposing economic penalties;

— discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong Qinfa
Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping;

— imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the Structure
Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping may not be able to comply;

— requiring the Group to restructure the relevant ownership
structure or operations;

— taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could
adversely affect the business of the Group; and

— revoking the business licences and/or the licences or certificates
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and/or voiding
the Structure Contracts.

The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the risk and to
ensure proper implementation of the Structure Contracts:

(@) as part of the internal control measures, major issues arising
from implementation and performance of the Structure
Contracts are reviewed by the board of directors of Qinfa
Logistics on a regular basis which is no less frequent than on a
quarterly basis;

(b) matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at such regular
meetings which is no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
and

(c) the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Hong
Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is no less frequent than
on a monthly basis, to the senior management of Qinfa Logistics
on the compliance and performance conditions under the
Structure Contracts and other related matters.

Annual Report 2017 00000 OO

. A

gogooboooooooobobbooooon
gooobooooooobobboooooon
gooobooooooobbbooooon
gobooobobooobobooooobo

u goooodno

g gooooboboobbbbboooooo
goboooboooon

O oboooooOooooooboooooo
obobooooocoobooboooo

g gobboooboboooobobooooobo

u gogoooboboooboobbobooooodad
gobooooooooon

O ooDo0Oo0obOOoooooobooonoog
oooooooocooboooboogno
oooo

goooboboboooooooobbboooaao
gooog

(a) oboooobOooobooobooooo
obOo0oooboOoooooobooooo
obOobOooooooboobooooon

() OODODOOODOOOOOOOOODDO
oboooobObOOo0oo0ooooboooono
obooboooo

(c) gooooboboobbbbboooooo
gooooboboobbbboooooo
ooooboobooboooobooooo
obooboobooooooo



China Qinfa Group Limited O 000000000

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
goooo

gboboobooboobooboboobobooa
ggoobooboboboooooobobbobooooo
gooooboobobbboooooobbbboo
goboooooooooooooooboooono
gobooooobooobooboooboobo
oooo

ooboooooboooobmbooomo
gooboobbboooooooOomoooo
gdnooooboooboobooobooboo
gooobOoobooobooboooboobo
goooooooooooooomooon
gooooooooobooobooobooboo
ooooooobooobooobooDbOooDo

Annual Report 2017 00 O




.

36 China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000

-« .

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
goooo

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in Note 35 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 35(b) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements constituted exempt continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
accordingly, are exempted from the disclosure requirements in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions as disclosed in
Note 35(a), (c) and (d) to the Consolidated Financial Statements are not
regarded as connected transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on 31
December 2012 and the Company had elected to defer distribution
payments for the year ended 31 December 2017 of HKD5,841,000
pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

\ b \
SNR Ep,> 3, SCNE ES
The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a

Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The principal terms of the two
schemes are as follows:

¥ S, fend K€

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
whereby 26 employees of the Group were granted the rights to
subscribe for shares.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise the
contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the Group and/
or the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are substantially the same as the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i) the exercise price per share; and

(i) the total number of shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPOShare O O00000O0O0OO0OO00O0OO0OOOCOOOOOO
Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted underthe O O0O00000O0O0OO0O0O0O0O0OOOOOOOO
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as therighttodosohasbeenterminated O OO0O00000O0O0OO0OO0OOOOOOOOO
upon the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. No shareis O0O0O00000000000O0O0O000O0OO
available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. gooDoUooooooooog

Set out below is further information on the outstanding optionsgranted OO0 000000000 O0OOOOOOOOOO

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report: goooooooooDbooooooooo
_ oo
MLLEPEY SN INE R TURY
goooooooo
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The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme which shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Company and to enable the Company
and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the share;
(i) the closing price of the shares on the date of the offer; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

The total number of shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to an
employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be determined
by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed ten years from the
date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not specify any minimum
holding period. The acceptance of an offer must be made within 30 days
from the date of offer with a non-refundable payment of HKD1.00.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options (the
“b]ter$ ”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the Share Option Scheme to 15 eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share
(which represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392 per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of HKDO0.10 per share). The Options are valid for a period of 10 years
from 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee is
entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(@) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2013,
40% of the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16 January 2014,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16 January 2015,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him.

On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options to subscribe
for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme to eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD0.485 per share (which represents
the highest of (i) the closing price of HKDO0.485 per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKDO0.484 per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO0.10
per share). The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 30 April
2015 to 29 April 2025. Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted,
23,500,000 were granted to the Directors (including two eligible
participants who were employees as at the date of grant and were
appointed as Director on 12 April 2017). The remaining share options
of 134,000,000 were granted to other eligible participants who are not
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company,
nor an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee is
entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(@) inrespect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2016, 40% of

the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April 2017, 30% of
the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) inrespect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April 2018, 30% of
the total number of Options granted to him.

Annual Report 2017 00000 OO

&

gooobobooooooooobobboooon
gbbooobbooobooooooodg

(@ DOoDOOO0ooDoOobOO0ooOOoooOOoOon
dodooooouooooooooob
0 40%0

(b DODOOOODOOODOOODOODOOO
ddodooooooooooooobob
0 30%0 O

(c DODOOOODODOODDOODOODOOO
ddodooooooooooooobob
0 30%0

goobobboboooouobooboboboooooon
gooobboboooooooobbooaaa
o0000oggisy,so0,0000 0000000
OOooooogoood48spnoo@moooond
oooooooooDbODbODbODbODbDbo.485000
(nboooooosooooboooooooon
OOoO0ooOoooogod84d 00 O(inb 0O
gooolooboOoOOOOOODmMOObOODOO
oobobloooooboooooooooon
gbobobodobdobobuooooooon
157,500,0000 O OO0 O 0 23,500,0000 O O O
obobooooOoOoooooboooboooon
oobobocoooooobooooooooon
O 001340000000 000000000C6
goboooooboooboooobooboobo
oooboboooobobooooboboooboooo
ooon

goboooooooobooobooobooboa
gbooooooobooboboooooon

(@ DO0DOO0OO0OO0COODOODOODOOOD
ooobooooboooooboboooooo
0 0 40%0

(b DODOOOOOCOODOODOODODOOO
ooobooobobooooobooooooo
0030%00

(c OODOODOODOOODODODOODODOOD
goobooobObooooobooooooo
0 0 30%0



Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted

under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:
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Mr. FUNG Wai Shing 30 April 2015 - 20,000,000 - - 20000000 0485  30/04/2015t0 080
(Appointed with effect from 12 April 2017) gpoooooooo 29/04/2025
gooog ooooo
(Cocopboooooooooo) oooooo
goooo
gooooo
Mr. LIU Jinghong 30 April 2015 - 2,000,000 - - 2000000 0485  30/04/2015t0 008
(Appointed with effect from 12 April 2017) oooooooooo 29/04/2025
goooo oooog
(0opbooooDOODODDO) gooooo
goooo
gooooo
né ’e n® nfnen® &, '#D§ s
gooooog
Mr. HUANG Guosheng 30 April 2015 500,000 - - - 500000 0485  30/04/2015t0 002
oooono oooooooooo 29/04/2025
oooog
gooooo
goooo
gooooo
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 - - - 500000 0485  30/04/2015t0 002
goooao goooo 29/04/2025
goooo oooog
gooooo
goooo
oooooo
Mr.XING Zhiying 30 April 2015 500,000 - - - 500000 0485  30/04/2015t0 002
goooo pooooooooo 29/04/2025
oooog
gooooo
ooooo
oooooo
Sub-total 1,500,000 22,000,000 - - 23,500,000 0.94
oo
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As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate number of share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme was 139,287,798.

BAY ADy, B BR*y, (&

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately RMB6,045.9 million. Particulars of the
bank and other borrowings are set out in Note 27 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

] 5

&Y CECvp-*B CpA

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
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The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the Company’s
Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject to Hong Kong
stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the purchaser and
seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the consideration or, if
greater, the fair value of the shares being bought/sold or transferred
(rounded up to the nearest HKD'000). In addition, a fixed duty of
HKD5.00 is currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from Hong Kong
may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

Ca)nhns and

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from Cayman Islands
stamp duty.

Cer? J IB ten Jth ‘reeSS ‘apd [adﬂse,s

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in
any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of
subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It
is emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of
shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for, purchase,
holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.

AB @
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board,
3
'ba

Chairman

Guangzhou, 27 March 2018
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. “ba (0 D), aged 32, was appointed as an executive Director on 9
October 2014. Mr. XU is also a Chairman of the Group. Mr. XU achieved
a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr. XU has more than 5 years of working
experience in thermal coal procurement operation from overseas. He
joined the Group as import and export manager in 2009. Mr. XU did not
hold other directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years.

» BA aa(00), aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director on 9
October 2014. Mr. BAl is also the chief of executive officer and a member
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Yy I'\II { a Sh-ng (0 0 0), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2017. Mr. FUNG is also the Company Secretary and
Chief Finance Officer of the Group. Mr. FUNG graduated from University
of London and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in banking and finance and MBA in finance respectively. Mr. FUNG
is an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
with over 20 years' experience in finance, auditing and accounting fields.
Mr. FUNG joined the Group in 2014. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the chief financial officer of a private group since June 2010. He was
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| H\, s R g (0 0 0) aged 75, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. HUANG is also a member of
the audit committee and the chairperson of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Board. Mr. HUANG graduated
from OO0 0O (Zhong Nan University), formerly known as 00000
0 (Chang Sha Railway College), majoring in railway transportation in
1965. Mr. HUANG served as the head of 0 O 0 OO (Guangzhou Port
Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed as a visiting professor
by O 0O0O0ODOO (Shanghai Maritime University), formerly known as [
00000 (Shanghai Maritime Transportation College), in 1996. Mr.
HUANG is also a senior engineer in railway transportation and has
enjoyed a special government allowance granted by the State Council
since 1992 for his outstanding contribution in engineering technology
for the nation. Mr. HUANG did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.

. A'®k veé (0 00), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non—executivé Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU is also the chairman
of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. LAU graduated with a bachelor
degree of science in Business Administration from Oregon State
University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants as well as a member of the American M

S
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vk Jln{ an (0 00) aged 49, is the vice president of the Group, and
is principally responsible for the management and operation works on
coal mine business. Mr. QI graduated from Renmin University of China
in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree in national economic planning and
management, and obtained a master degree in business administration
from O O 0O O O O (Hebei Provincial Party School) in 2003. Mr. QI
has more than 20 years of experience in the field of investment
management and financial planning with specialty in taxation planning
works on financial aspect. Mr. QI was appointed as the vice chairman
of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Company Limited, a member of the
Group in September 2015 and as the vice president of the Group in
February 2016.

> AJ.l- (000), aged 50, is the general manager of coal mine
division of the Group. He is responsible for mine production policies
performance, efficiency promotion and ensuring the implementation
of regulations. Mr. MA graduated from O O O O O O (Changchun
University of Technology) in 2013 with a bachelor degree in the major
of coal mining technology. Mr. MA has more than 20 years of working
experience in coal mine related industries. He is very familiar with
coal operation and environment, and has therefore made significant
contribution to coal mine business of the Group.

+JA (aln ), aged 52, is the vice president of the Group, and is
in charge of coal mine division. Mr. JIA graduated from OO OO0 0O
(Shangdong University of Science and Technology) in 2003 majoring
in mining engineering, and obtained a master degree in business
administration from 0 O O O (Nankai University) in 2006. Mr. JIA joined
the Group in 2017. Before joining the Group, he has been awarded many
honorary titlessuchas 00 OO0 OO0 OO (National Excellent Mine
Director of Coal Enterprise), Advanced Worker in Progress of 0 0 O[O
0000000 (Coal Science and Technology),and D OO OOOO0O
(Excellent Entrepreneur of Shandong Province) for many times. Mr. JIA
has more than 30 years of experience in the production management
and mining technology in the coal industry. With outstanding working
performance, he has created many industrial records in China, Asia, and
even the world.

~ BAg, v ; ng (DD O), aged 41, is the vice president of the Group,
and is principally responsible for human resources, administrative
management, and planning operation. Mr. BAO graduated from 00 O
000 (Inner Mongolia University) in 2000 majoring in international
trade. He joined the Group in 2017. Mr. BAO has more than 18 years
of experience in human resource management and many years of
experience in operational management. Before joining the Group, he
worked in large real estate groups in the PRC with extensive experience
in management, responsible for regional expansion, operation, and
human resource management.
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The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasise on accountability and transparency and are
adopted in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to fulfil its

commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate governance code
of practices since the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017.

B;‘R D;FD? EC g s

RS pr® 1 ®sand P te

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of the Group's overall objectives and strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, monitoring its operating and
financial performance, performing the corporate governance duties and
evaluating the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group
and the company secretary. Management information is provided to
enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when requested.
The company secretary provides secretarial support to the Board and
ensures adherence to Board procedures and the relevant rules and
regulations which are applicable to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are managed by the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to these officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board
periodically reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to
obtain Board approval.

t
Bea @ oM S - “ap
The Board currently consists of eight Directors, five of whom are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

Eg ) R D.§ Ls-

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jianfei

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

Mr. LIU Jinghong

n® ; n® nfnen® % . ' D& Ls-
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. XING Zhiying

All five executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not
limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Group. The Company maintains appropriate directors’
and officers’ liabilities insurance.

S
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The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has
appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. Biographical details of the independent non-executive
Directors are set out on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing of
his independence pursuant to Rule 313 of the Listing Rules. The Board
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary of
the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company held an annual
general meeting and the Board held five Board meetings, all of which
were convened in accordance with the Articles, and the individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:

NALLET Y ¥ \dag, ©
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Mr. XU Da is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director,
responsible for providing advice for the overall management and
strategic development and overseeing the operation of the Board.
Mr. BAI Tao, an executive Director, is the Chief Executive Officer,
who is responsible for the Group’s overall management, corporate
development, strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day
operation. The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of power
and authority.

TE B A (Cp, EE
The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration committee
consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAl Tao and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng and Mr. XING Zhiying.
Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of the remuneration committee
of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
set out in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

S
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The remuneration committee held two meetings during 2017 to assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management and
review their remuneration. The duties of the remuneration committee
include determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management. All the members
attended the meetings.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years. All the independent non-
executive Directors entered into renewed appointment letters with
the Company in 2015 for a term of three years. Such term is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

%
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The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set out the

requirements for diversity in Board members and the principles for the
selection of Directors.

) et é% mnyg , ¢
To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increased diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In planning the Board’s composition,
board diversity needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates of the Company will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and all the
members attended the meetings.
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During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2017 and interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 to the Board for approval. The
audit committee also reviewed the accounting issues raised by the
independent auditor of the Company in respect of the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
relevant issues as described in the paragraphs under “Risk Management
and Internal control” below.
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The Group provides to all the Dlrectors a comprehensive induction
package which includes introduction on the business operations, internal
procedures and general policy of the Company and a summary of
statutory and regulatory obligations of directors under the Listing Rules
and other relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors are
provided with regular updates on the Group's business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. According to the training records provided
by the Directors to the Company, each Director has confirmed that he/
she has obtained reading and training materials during the year under
review and has attended the trainings in relation to various aspects,
including but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices.
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The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management
and internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
interests of the Group as a whole.

The internal audit function monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems established within
the Company and its subsidiaries for proper accounting records, and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information. The work of the
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The Board has reviewed the effective of systems and considered that,
for the year 31 December 2017, the risk management and internal
control system and procedures of the Group were reasonably effective
and adequate, no material deficiencies has been identified.
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The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors have also selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial
Reporting Standards, and made prudent and reasonable judgements
and estimates, and have prepared the Consolidated Financial
Statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that
the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements will be published in a
timely manner.

The Directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on
pages 65 to 72 of this report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration to the Group’s
external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group is set forth below:
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Audit services oooo 1,972

Non-audit services” goooo= 700

[~ 5 l go "HG 2

*  Non-audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assistingthe * 000000000000000000000O0

Company review its condensed consolidated financial statements of the ooooooooooooooooooood
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017. oooood
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The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing Rules
to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate, complete
and timely basis and all other information that might have significant
impact on the decisions of shareholders and other concerned parties in
an active and timely manner. Also, the Company takes effort in ensuring
all shareholders have equal access to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. The executive Directors and the
chief financial officer of the Company hold regular briefings and results
presentation, attend investor forums and respond to investors’ call-
in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional investors and
financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries to
keep them abreast of the Company’s business and development as
well as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and collects the
feedback from them, in the interests of developing an interactive and
mutually beneficial relationship with the Company’s investors.
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The Group is a long-time, continuous supporter of corporate
social responsibility, dedicated to contributing to society through
nature preservation and helping the underprivileged. To maintain
its sustainable development momentum and become a leading
international coal operator, the Group treats its employees, customers,
the society and the natural environment ethically.

Ev® by EqA ¥ 4 EC 4y

The Group has been working tirelessly to build green communities.
Besides promoting a green lifestyle, the Group strives to minimise
damage to the environment while increasing production efficiency,
creating win-win outcomes for the Group and the society.

andi aMa t‘en

Consistent with the “those who destroys shall reclaim” guidance issued
by the State Council, five coal mines of the Group (namely Fengxi Coal
Mine, Chongsheng Coal Mine, Xingtao Coal Mine, Xinglong Coal Mine
and Hongyuan Coal Mine) carried out reclamation activities for all
parcels of land compromised during the course of mine construction
and production. The reclamation project focuses on agricultural
production and forest restoration according to the principle of “using
for agriculture, forestry or animal husbandry as appropriate”. The Group
will spend approximately RMB354 million on reclamation projects
for the five coal mines over periods of 22, 31, 25, 30 and 30 years
respectively. Throughout the process, the Group will provide streamlined
management and land protection services, thereby allowing the land to
maximise its economic, social and ecological benefits.

bt ®

The Group actively encourages its employees to apply “4R” (reduce,
reuse, recycle and replace) rules in the office. Under the 4R policy,
the Group’s employees replace direct paper printing with electronic
scanning and use email to transmit documents in order to reduce the
use of paper, and avoid the use of disposable products. From time to
time, the Group reminds its employees to reuse single-side printed
waste paper for printing internal documents. The Group’s office drinking
fountains also use recyclable plastic bottles. In the future, the Group
will continue to pursue the 4R policy and maintain a green working
environment.
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The Group considers its employees to be essential for the business
success. Therefore, the Group attaches great importance to its
employees' physical and mental health and working environment, as
well as their continuous skill development to enhance competitiveness.
Thus, the Group has formulated occupational safety guidelines and
policies for the working environment, along with related requirements
for different employees, and provides regular safety training.

Comm g a Y T

The Group believes that work performance and learning attitudes are
affected by internal factors such as the working environment, attitudes
of co-workers and company policies. The Group therefore adopts an
open approach which encourages employees to report their opinions
to the management and provide the Group with ways to improve our
operations.

Em 8¢ B @ "¢

The Group's employees are an important part of its assets. This is why
employees are covered by insurance policies taken out by the Group
and receive medical benefits in addition to wages and bonuses. The
Group also holds an annual year-end party to express its gratitude for
the efforts made by the employees throughout the year and grants
outstanding performance awards to employees with especially excellent
performance.

Em e#e 13008

The Group's ability to maintain continuous development amid severe
competition depends on each employee performing their role well.
Towards this end, the Group regularly invites professionals to organise
training seminars on management, law, accounting, finance and other
corporate fields for its employees, allowing employees to keep abreast
of the latest information and making sure they have the knowledge and
skills they need to handle the demands of their jobs.
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In addition to general and basic benefits, the Group also offers housing
allowances to coal miners to help limit the inconvenience they may
encounter in getting to and from the workplace. This arrangement
allows them to relocate to locations near the coal mine at lower cost to
themselves, thereby saving commuting time and expense.

% ¥ ¢

As a coal operator, the Group attaches great importance to the safety of
coal miners at work. Workers are therefore required to comply with the
Group's strict safety code and wear appropriate safety equipment before
entering coal mines. The Group is particularly proud that the Xingtao
coal mine operated by Huameiao Energy was designated a Grade 1
Safety Demonstration Mine by the China National Coal Association.
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Qinfa
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 73 to 200, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
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determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to

be communicated in our report.
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The Group's impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights is included in Notes 14 and 15
to the consolidated financial statements respectively and the accounting policies in Note 2(Kk)(ii) to the consolidated financial

statements.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB4,683,766,000 and coal
mining rights of approximately RMB4,417,366,000. Reversal
of impairment losses of approximately RMB2,087,848,000
and approximately RMB2,206,456,000 in relation to property,
plant and equipment and coal mining rights respectively were
recognised during the year.
OO0ooO0o0OoO0ooO0oQoU0oO0 DooooOooo
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For the purpose of management’s impairment assessment,
the recoverable amounts of the individual assets or the cash
generating units (“C (d"”), to which the assets belonged were
determined by management based on their values in use
using cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant management judgements were
used to determine the key assumptions, including projected
sales quantities, unit selling prices, unit costs and discount
rates, underlying the value-in-use calculations. Accordingly
the impairment assessment of these assets was considered
to be one of most significance in the audit and therefore
determined to be a key audit matter.
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Our procedures to evaluate the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights made
by the management of the Company included:
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e We assessed management’s identification of individual
assets and CGUs to test the assets for impairment based
on the Group’s accounting policies and our understanding
of the Group’s business;
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e We assessed the value-in-use calculations and
methodology adopted by management; and
e [JOOOO0O0O0OOOOOODOOOOOOOOOON

e We assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including projected sales quantities, unit selling prices,
unit costs and discount rates) based on our knowledge of
the business and industry.
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The Group’s impairment assessment of trade and bill receivables is included in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(k)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade and bill
receivables of approximately RMB782,884,000. Impairment
losses of approximately RMB31,127,000 in relation to trade
receivables were recognised in consolidated profit or loss
during the year.
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In determining whether there was objective evidence
of impairment loss during the year and the amount of
impairment loss allowance to be recognised as at the end of
the financial reporting period, the management assessed the
credit history and current credit worthiness of the customers,
taking into consideration the current market conditions, all
of which involved high level of estimation uncertainty and
required exercise of significant management judgement.
Accordingly the impairment assessment of these receivables
was considered to be a key audit matter.

000000000 0D00oO00oooooooooooog
000000000000 0000000O000Ooo0ooOog
OO000o0o0OoO00ooOoO0OoooOoooOoOooooooog
OO000o0O00DoOo0OoooUooDoOoOooooooOooon
ooooooo

Our procedures to evaluate the impairment assessment of
trade and bill receivables made by the management of the
Company included:

o000 ODO0oO0obO0oOoobOO0oOobboOoobO0oobooon
oooooooo

e We discussed with the management the Group’s
procedures for granting of credit terms to its customers;
e 00O0OOUODODOCO ODOOODODODOOOOOOOOO

e We evaluated the impairment indicators identified by
management for each trade and bill receivable balance
and performed ageing analysis of the trade and bill
receivables;

e D0ODODOODODODOODODOODOOOODOODOO
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e We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade and bill receivables; and
e JOOOOOOOODOODODOOOOOOOOOOOO

e We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of trade and bill receivables.
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The dlrectors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2017 of the Group other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

"ESY SB E% DPECRE R E

Co, o, DAED_ (A CA &AE E &

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

aef &6 R C*A méd
Certified Public Accountants

CR n&®, nE
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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For the year ended 31 December2017 000000000000 OOOOO

2@ 2016
ooooo goooad
Notes R Boee RMB’000
00 goood goood
ReR e oo 5 3,006, 716,187
Cost of sales oooo (3 9,043) (679,684)
(gs ao %62 36,503
Other i mcome gains and losses Oooooooooo 6 95,‘, (55,962)
Distribution expenses oooo (R.90.9 (15,993)
Administrative expenses ooood ( -99.9) (189,339)
Reversal of impairment losses, net oooooooo 8(b) 4469 49 604173
Other expenses oooo (34 49.9 (59,460)
79@3M ¢ S am ,}-.a théa . Ts ocoooogo | i, ﬁ%h« _______ 319,922
Finance income oooo 0B L 984
Finance costs oooo (3 .29 ) (447,939)
§ Vot 8¢ oooooo 7 3.2 ) (446,955)
Yo t(ss) B8 b g ten 00000 mO0O 8(a) 46-% 44 (127,033)
Income tax expense ooooo 9 96.,,09 ) (189,694)
Yo tlss) e R 2a, 0000mooo 3, ,4,300 (316,727)
bRe MRS B (159) ¢ or® Doo0000Mm O0
Item that may be reclassified subsequently OO0 00O O0O0OOO0OO0OOOOOO
to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences 000000000
for foreign operations oooo 3,-!“) 24,524
Item that was reclassified to profitorloss: OO 0000000000 ‘
Foreign currency translation differences 000000000000
reclassified to profit or loss upon doooooooo
disposal of subsidiaries (.x) —
bRe M ER R (155) ¢ o1® D00000000m 000
. )"; by ooo 12 C4,00,) 24,524
cbel MER SR g o® (i88) 000000 mooo
e f , oo 3, 0349 (292,203)
e tlss) o, RAgatte g & 0D0D0ODODMOOM
Equity shareholders of the Company ooooooood 3, Lgz4e (330,542)
Non-controlling interests ooooo igq, 00 13,815
¥ 't(l,ss)',, R Pa, 0000mooo 3, 44,300, (316,727)
cbel MRS R g ne (iss) 00000000 mMOO00
~ R attk 5 lq 5 ooo
Equity shareholders of the Company ooooooood 3, 4434 (306,018)
Non-controlling interests ooooo igq, 00 13,815
ohel M ER SR ¢ o0® (i58) 000000 mOoO
s f , o0 3, 0349 (292,203)
Ea.pn® (S8)C.sk€attk b4 L O0O0DOODOOOOOD
LA 'gh,l&s,fﬁ 0000 mOOO
C,mﬁ n?d.ng R &a, 13
Basic earnlngs/(loss) per share oooooomooo ® B ,}Le n§ (RMB13 cents)
ooo ,0 (00001300
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share oooooo0mooo ® B . ® né | (RMB13 cents)
ooo , 0 (0o0ooisod
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,20 2016
ooooao goooad
Notes T B0l RMB’'000
oad goooad goooad
yere & piese d ooooo
Property, plant and equipment oopoooobood 14 46-8, 66 2,614,793
Coal mining rights oo0ooo 15 44 366 2,292,588
Lease prepayments gooodo 16 4933 5,073
Interest in an associate oooooooooo 17 —
9 06,065, 4912454
C,.8 niwse & oooo
Inventories 00 20 99 BR., 49,652
Trade and bill receivables ooooooooooo 21 9 2% 392,342
Prepayments and other receivables ooooooooood 22 UL R4 ] S 281158
Pledged and restricted deposits oooooOoooon 23 T84 2113
Cash and cash equivalents gpooooooo 24 20,349 24713
, 9., 749,978
Cﬂ,?nt[abl‘es goog
Trade payables oooooo 25 (949,950). (981,827)
Other payables ooDo0oo 26 (, 6Re.®) (2,946,743)
Borrowings oo 27 G 0.5a®ml, (6043271)
Tax payable oooo {2,639 (242,050)
(0,044 46 Q| (10,213,891
§t & ntiak®s oooood (o  .®&l  (9463913)
,slassesq$s. e ntakt®s 0oo00oOoooo 2.9 (4,551,459)
N [a k| eS goood
Other payables oooooo 26 ( 4603) (67,717)
Accrued reclamation obligations gooogo 28 ( [ LW ) (96,458)
Deferred tax liabilities oooooo 18(b) ( . LA (205,673)
( 4Rgge ) (369,848)
\f tak | ®s oooo 846 ) (4,921,307)
G y hlapnd $se ,Fs ooooo
Share capital oo 29(b) q yaat 211,224
Perpetual subordinated ooooooo R
convertible securities o0 29(c) 56,93 156,931
Deficit oo 29(d) 7,30,,3) (5,447,702)
e Rtk bl tet ¥ 0000000000
SRP 5 o 1R C mﬁ,,) 0000 ( 9339 6) (5,079,547)
G en ,,ung nées % ooooon KELE 158,240
YL oooo ( %8 ) (4,921,307)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China

Qinfa Group Limited on 27 March 2018.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December2017 000000000000 OOO0OO

.0 2016
ooood ogoood
Notes R Boeee RMB’000
od gogood goooad
5§ athda N s oooo
Cash generated from operations oooooood 24(b) 23 % 73129
Interest paid 0oooo ) 5,3,2) (135,685)
PRC Corporate Income Tax refund/(paid) 00 Mmoooooooogo R _33.2 (1161)
§ @ hE L .a%d am (sed ) 000000 mMO0n
ef-a'nga 'N-®s oo 48y | .. (Bl
n#s t ga . ®s oooo
Interest received 0oooo LORL, 984
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant oopooooooog
and equipment oooo ag 47,403
Acquisition of property, plantand equipment O OO0O0O0O0O0O0O0O ( 43 300) (163,009)
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries O OO0OOOOOOOOOO (.,3) =
§ s hsed Bs thga tN®s oDoooooooo (4 o9 (114,622)
—— e Ang‘ tuAeS goooOoo
Proceeds from borrowings ooooOooao 9 '3 1,888,848
Repayment of borrowings gooo ( -99R ) (1,750,899)
Decrease in pledged and restricted deposits OO O0O0OOO0OO0OOO0O0O 29 43,798
§#hE £ a%d M e nga M®s 0000000000 4,433 181,747
$f“srase,ashan¢ap|¢";uqn§ O0o000D0oO0oOooon G, 3,408
Cs hapnd % MGpdat Ja,,‘a,) 00000000000 0O0O 24(a) 2% 3 20,669
ER ' o® 28y n® a% kpfs 0ooOoO0O0O €., 8 636
Gs hand s ¥ % MGpdafs BRemP, 000000000000
gooon 24(a) -2 349 24,713
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China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’'s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 3 July 2009 (the “Listing Date”). The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place of
business of the Company is Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208, level 22, South
Tower, Poly International Plaza, No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu
District, Guangzhou City, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

0
BAB 1 \ID A\ID BAS-S-b,

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are coal mining, purchases and sales,
filtering, storage, blending of coal in the PRC and shipping
transportation.

Bss o y® i ten

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related
Interpretations, promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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2 B§ ] E‘ ",e ﬁ,a ten (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands,
except when otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

(c) Going concern

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by approximately RMB8,852,285,000 and capital
deficiency of approximately RMB1,204,617,000. As at 31 December
2017, borrowings and accrued interest amounting to an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB2,805,712,000 and approximately
RMBA435,551,000 respectively were not renewed or rolled over
upon maturity. The non-payment of loan principal and interests in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates caused the banks
and other borrowing creditors having the rights to call for immediate
repayment of all borrowings and their respective interest. In this
connection, certain borrowings with scheduled repayment terms
over one year totalling approximately RMB1,499,842,000 have been
classified as current liabilities.
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(c) Going concern (continued)

JU0000ooo
(c)D00O0Oooo

As at the date of this report, the Group has not obtained waivers
from the relevant banks on these cross default clauses, and these
banks have not taken any action against the Group to demand
immediate repayment except for as disclosed in Note 38(a)(iv).

In addition, as at 31 December 2017, there were several pending
litigations mainly requesting repayment of long outstanding
payables with interest against the Group, as set out in Note 38(a).

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumptions that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at 31
December 2017 and subsequently thereto up to the date of this
report. In order to improve the Group's financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as a
going concern, the directors of the Company have adopted several
measures together with other measures in progress at the date of
this report, but not limited to, the followings:

(i) The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and capital expenditures;

(i) The Group is maximising its sales efforts including seeking long
term orders from power plants and coal trading companies
in the PRC with a view to improving operating cash flows.
Considering the stability of coal market and steady coal
prices, the Group is expected to generate operating cash
inflows in coming years from its existing production facilities
continuously;
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(c) Going concern (continued)

(iii) In relation to those bank loans that have not been renewed

(iv)

v)

or rolled over upon maturity or those bank loans that became
immediately repayable under the cross default clauses, the
Group is in the process of negotiating with the relevant banks
to extend the repayment and renew the loans and to obtain
waivers from the lenders for the due payment pursuant to the
relevant cross default clauses;

For borrowings which will be maturing before 31 December
2018, the Group will actively negotiate with the banks before
they fall due to secure their renewals so as to ensure that
the necessary funds to meet the Group’s working capital and
financial requirements in the future will continue to be met.
The directors of the Company do not expect to experience
significant difficulties in renewing most of these short-term
borrowings upon their maturities and there is no indication
that these bank lenders will not renew the existing short-
term borrowings upon the Group’s request. The directors of the
Company have evaluated the relevant facts available to them
and are of the opinion that the Group would be able to renew
such borrowings upon maturity; and

The Group is actively negotiating with the plaintiffs for
settlement of the court cases. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group successfully reached agreements
with certain plaintiffs at PRC courts on settlement plans
over 40 cases with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB188,321,000 that will be repaid by monthly installment.
The aggregate amount to be settled before 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately RMB45,600,000. The directors
of the Company are of the view that the Group will be able to
reach settlement plans for the remaining claims for various
plaintiffs without significant impact on the Group’s cash flow in
the next twelve months.
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2 Bgs s f‘ ",e ﬁ,a tgn (continued)

(c) Going concern (continued)

On the basis of the successful implementation of the measures
described above in the foreseeable future and after assessing the
Group's current and forecasted cash positions, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’'s financial obligations as they fall due for the twelve months
from 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the going concern
basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that may arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.
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(d) Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

(i)

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are described as
follows:

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables are assessed
and provided based on management’s regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts would affect the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in future years. At 31 December 2017,
carrying amount of the Group’s trade and bill receivables was
approximately RMB782,884,000 (2016: RMB392,342,000). Further
details are disclosed in Note 21.

(i) Depreciation

Other than mining structures and assets under construction,
property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The management periodically
reviews changes in technology and industry conditions, asset
retirement activity and residual values to determine adjustments
to estimated remaining useful lives and depreciation rates. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
reviews could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expenses in future periods. At 31 December 2017,
net carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
other than mining structures and assets under construction, was
approximately RMB1,978,755,000 (2016: RMB1,135,629,000).
Further details are disclosed in Note 14.

"
4

gooooood

UO0dUdb0b0000poo

OO000Oooo

(dOOODOOO0Oooo

udoooooooooobboboboood
tboooooooooooobooobobnb
oobooooboboooboooao

obobOobOoooooobooog

oob0OooooOobOOoooobOoooooo
oobOoooobOoooooOoooooo
oobOo0oooooOboooobObOoooon
oobOoooooOooooooooooo
oobooooDOoooooobDoooooon
Ooo0obDo0OoOoooObOOoOoooboooooo
oob0ooooObOOooobOOooooon
ooooboooooononnov782,884,000
O0O0O0OO0OO00000O03892,342,0000
oboboobob21000

oo

oooDoOooooboooooboooon
oob0oooObOO0ooobOoooon
oooboooooOoobobooboooonn
uboboboobooooobboooboodod
boooooooooooooooobn
dodoooooooooooooobobn
oo0oooboboooboooboon
oooboooocoobobOobooobon
oooobOooOooobOoOoocooooon
ooooooooooooooOODODODOO
01,978, 755,00000 0 0 0 00000ODO
1,135,629,0000 [ OO0 0OODOOODO 140
oo

Annual Report2017 OOO0OO0OOOO

4

r



84 China Qinfa Group Limited OO 00000 OO0O
w .
h
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

gooooooo
31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

Cy, A VBAG 1y, {DADBASS, 000000000Oooo

. \4
¥ E.’R. \}\ b,y oy ED)
2 Bgs s f‘ ",e ﬁ,a tgn (continued)
(d) Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

JU0000ooo
(dOODODOOO0Oooo

(iii) Net realisable value of inventories (i00ooOobDOoo

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of distributing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of competitor’s actions in response to industry cycles
or other changes in market condition. Management assesses
the estimations at each reporting date. At 31 December 2017,
carrying amount of the Group’s inventories was approximately
RMB99,155,000 (2016: RMB49,652,000). Further details are
disclosed in Note 20.

(iv) Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's coal reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated coal reserves can
be designated as “proved” and “probable” reserves. Proved and
probable coal reserve estimates are updated on a regular basis
and have taken into account recent production and technical
information about each mine. In addition, as prices and cost levels
change from year to year, the estimate of proved and probable coal
reserves also change as adverse changes in prices and cost levels
would affect the cost-effectiveness of mining the coal and hence
may cause reclassifications from reserves to resources categories.
This change is considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation and amortisation rates.
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) Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

(iv) Coal reserves (continued)

v)

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation and
amortisation expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation and
amortisation rates are determined based on estimated proved and
probable coal reserve quantity (the denominator) and capitalised
costs of mining structures and coal mining rights (the numerator).
The capitalised cost of mining structures are depreciated and coal
mining rights are amortised based on the units of coal produced.
At 31 December 2017, net carrying amounts of the Group’s mining
structures recognised in property, plant and equipment and the
Group’s coal mining rights were approximately RMB1,733,293,000
(2016: RMB737,652,000) and approximately RMB4,417,366,000
(2016: RMB2,292,588,000) respectively. Further details are
disclosed in Notes 14 and 15 respectively.

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation and mine
closure involves the estimates of the amount and timing for the
future cash spending as well as the discount rate used for reflecting
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The Group considers various factors,
including future production volume and development plan, the
geological structure of the mining regions and reserve volume, to
determine the scope, amount and timing of reclamation and mine
closure works to be performed. Determination of the effect of these
factors involves judgements from the Group and the estimated
liabilities may turn out to be different from the actual expenditure
incurred. The discount rate used by the Group may also be altered
to reflect the changes in the market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability, such as changes of
the borrowing rate and inflation rate in the market. As changes in
estimates occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated
costs, or changes in timing of the performance of reclamation
activities), revisions to the obligations will be recognised. At
31 December 2017, carrying amount of the Group’s accrued
reclamation obligations was approximately RMB105,280,000 (2016:
RMB96,458,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 28.
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PN Bgs s f ! ﬁ,a ten (continued)

(d) Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

(vi) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that non-financial assets with definite lives may be
impaired or that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods
for such non-financial assets may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(k)(ii). In assessing whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets may be impaired
or that impairment loss may have reversed, the Group considers
indications from both internal and external sources of information
such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in economic
performance of the assets, changes in market conditions and
economic environment. These assessments are subjective and
require management’s judgements and estimations.

a S {y-CA, ACCy, X \l at *, CE&
Q) S kB dafsandpnee eon teltng n¥8s ¢

Sub5|dlar|es are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Non -controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (Note 2(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate (Note 2(b)) or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.
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An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (Note 2(k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, whereas
the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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(b) ESQ aeS (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (Note 2(e)).

teed Ul

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of CGU, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (Note 2(k)(ii)).
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)

(eed v (continued)

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on disposal.

(d)»Agve ‘8h "'vveh )

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances
relevant to the entity (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB (the “presentation
currency”), while the functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”).

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
those arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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(d),‘e,e -8 ‘.,,eqa )(continued) (d) O0Oooo

(iii) Foreign operations gGnooono
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair value uboooboooobobboooooooo
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RMB at ubboooobobbooooboooobooo
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of gbboobooboobbooboon
foreign operations are translated to RMB at exchange rates at the ooooooo

dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive 0o00o0b00ooboooobooobooon
income and accumulated in the translation reserve, except to the ooooOoooobOoooobooOooooon
extent that the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling goooo

interests.

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable oooooooooOoooooooooon
to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in 0o00oo0b00oobboooboooobooon
the foreseeable future, then foreign currency differences arising ooobOooooOobOoooobOoooon
from such item form part of the net investment in the foreign ubdbooobooooooobbobooodad
operation. Accordingly, such differences are recognised in other goooooooooon

comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve.

€) ragy als b e ¢ é)oooao

(i) Non-derivative financial assets ) ooooooOo
The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date ddddoooooooooooooo
that they are originated. All other financial assets are recognised goooooooobobboboooooo
initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes gooo0oooooobboooooood
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. oo
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual gobooboobobooobooboo
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the ogoooooboboobooooboo
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 0ooboD0oboobobobboooboon
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the uggboboobooboooobooobood
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains 000000000 0o0oo0ooooooOod
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does ooooooooooooooooood
not retain control over the transferred assets. Any interest in such goobooooObOooooobooooooo
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group oboooooooooooooooooo
is recognised as a separate asset or liability. od
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount gooboboooobobobooobon
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when, goooobbboooOOooboboooog
and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts ooobooooobooooooooooo
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset ooooooooboood

and settle the liability simultaneously.
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é )"‘l\aﬁ al® .t" ne n§ (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (Note 2(Kk)(i)).

Loans and receivables comprise pledged and restricted deposits,
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(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(K)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for
its intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs (Note 2(s)) and changes in the measurement
of existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting from
changes in the timing or outflow of resources required to settle the
obligation or from changes in the discount rate. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When proved and probable coal reserves have been determined,
costs incurred to develop coal mines are capitalised as part of the
cost of the mining structures. All other expenditures, including
the costs of removing waste materials, the cost of repairs and
maintenance and major overhaul, are expensed as they are
incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different estimated useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

:
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() 0DO0DDDDODODooo
(i) Subseguent costs yoooa

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The
costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a
component has an estimated useful life that is different from the
remainder of the asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of
significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years
Electronic and other equipment 3-10years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-production
method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves in the depletion
base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. Assets under construction are transferred to the
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment upon the
completion of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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(‘)

Cea [m‘nlng,‘ghé

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights acquired from the
government or through a business combination. Coal mining rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (Note 2(k)(ii)), if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-production
method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves in the depletion
base.

ese © ahe 6
Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Lease prepayments are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(k)
(i), if any.

Amortisation is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of the rights.

t
nf n's.fs

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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nﬂ n ",,es (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as cost of sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as cost of sales
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

b;bl& ter$ ‘ev»i RNg ten

The Group's obligations for reclamation consist of spending
estimates at both surface and underground mines in accordance
with the PRC rules and regulations. The Group estimates its
liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure based upon
detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash
spending to perform the required work. Spending estimates are
escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability such that the amount of
provision reflects the present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The Group records as additional
costs of the mining structures in property, plant and equipment
associated with the liability for final reclamation and mine closure.
The obligation and corresponding asset are recognised in the period
in which the liability is incurred. The asset is depreciated on the
units-of-production method over its expected life and the liability
is accreted to the projected spending date. As changes in estimates
occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated costs,
or changes in timing of the performance of reclamation activities),
the revisions to the obligation and the corresponding asset are
recognised at the appropriate discount rate.
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Financial assets not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
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(i)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables. When the Group considers that there are no realistic
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written
off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other
than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill
that have indefinite useful lives or coal mining rights that are
not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an operating
segment ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is
performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash
inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate assets
are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the
corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other
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(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme as specified by the
local municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to
reduce existing level of contributions for each of the years.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

Annual Report 2017 OO OO00O0O0O

.

B

O0O0OO0Oooo

2

(MDD OO

() DOoOoOoOoO
0000000000 O000O0O0O0OO000
D0000O0000O0O0O0O0O00O0O0O0n0
gdo0oooopoooooooouoooog
goooogno

() 0000000000

ooObO0ooobOoOOoooobooooon
ooObO0ooooobOO0oooooObooooon
obobomobooobOooooboon
ooooooooboooooooboon
oooooooooooobobobobDDbDO
doooooooooooooooobon
obooboobOooooooooog

gooooooooooobbobobDbDn
ooooooooooobbobobooobon
o0b00oooobOO0oooooObOoooon
oo0O0ooooObOO0oooboooooon
dooouooooooooboobobibod
gboboooon

Oo00O0oooobOO0OooooObOoooon
ooooon

(000000000

ob0DoobObooobooobooboon
oo0oooooooooooboboobobobon
oooooOobOoooOooooooon
oobOooobOoOoooooOoOooooon
uboboobboooobooooboad
ddodoooooooooooooonon
goooooooooooboboboobbon
oo



China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000 101
v A
4
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gooooood

2 & Qy-CAy ACCy, 5 {7 CE®wcyy o o, 000000ooo
(m) Em!b)e B r? -4 (continued) (m)D OO00Oooo
(iii) Share-based payments (continued) @GMOODODODODODO0OOooo

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to share capital and share premium
accounts) or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained earnings or accumulated losses).

(n) Yol of anl antn€ nflak®s

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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(e)

(i)
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S {(CA  ACCy, J| yi'» CE%G i
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N,
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value added tax.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually
in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is
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(e)“ G n‘e (continued) (f) O0Oooo
(iv) Government subsidies (vOOoOooo

‘v

(1,)

Government subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Subsidies that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as other income
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Subsidies that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the estimated useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

b Fa thgg e ﬁ)ne né

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total
lease expense, over the term of the lease.

we® h§ e

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purpose and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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(") ® ,ne 53 3; r$e (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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“’) ® ,ne 5 j ﬁ ﬁe (continued) (1') O0000ooo

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements dboooobooooboooobooooan
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not goboobooboooboooboon
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, gboobooboboooboobooon
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group gododooboboooooboooobon
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against gooooooobooOboOoOooo0ooooo
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are oooooooooooooooon

met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group U ooboobbooobobooobod
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset gooboooooooooooonon
and settle the liability simultaneously; or goo

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to U0 0oboobbooobooboooboo
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either: obOooooooobooooooo
— the same taxable entity; or U oobboooboooad
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period 0 OD00O0O0OO0oOO0oboOoooao

in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities goobooobooooboboo
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, ooooDooboobooboobo
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the goooooobooooooood
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle goooooooooon

simultaneously.

() DAG & () oo
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they ooooOoooooobooo
are declared.
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Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank borrowings
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

$ o tng

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

(yne wéd re s

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’'s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

2
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(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i

(ii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) O
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In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments issued by the IASB.

IAS 7 Amendments Disclosure Initiative

IAS 12 Amendments Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

None of these amendments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. However, additional disclosure
has been included in Note 24(c) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to IAS 7 Statement
of cash flows: Disclosure Initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable user of the financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Comparative information for prior year has not been provided in
accordance with the transitional provisions of the amendments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Q) & gne n'fs #@sedadiaky®s

The Group has two operating and reportable segments which are
the Group’s strategic business units, as follows:

Coal business: Coal mining, purchases and sales, filtering, storage
and blending of coal in the PRC.

Shipping transportation: Time charter and voyage charter of
vessels.

These strategic business units offer different products and
services, and are managed separately because they require
different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the
strategic business units, the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”)
reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the CEO monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is adjusted
profit/(loss) before net finance costs and income tax expense.
Items not specifically attributable to individual segments, such
as unallocated head office and corporate expenses are further
adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, coal mining rights,
lease prepayments, interest in an associate and current assets
with the exception of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade payables, other payables attributable to activities
of the individual segments, accrued reclamation obligations and
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.

Annual Report 2017 OO OO00O0O0O

B

ooooooooooooooooooo
oboobooboooooo

oooooooooobobbboobn
oooooooon

obooboobOooooooo

oooooooooobobobobooon
oooooooooooobobobobDDbDO
gbooboooobomobooboomon
oboobOobooOooooooboon

gooooooooooboboboboobn
oooooooooooobobobobDDbDO
gooooooo

oboboomoooooobooooon

dooooooooooobobobbobonn
ooomoooobobobooooooan

oooooobOobooobooooboo

oooooooboboboobbbooan
ddooobooooooooooooon
doooooooooooboboobobobn
ooooooooooooooooboon
doooooooooooooooobon
oo

doooooooooooboboboobibd
gbobooooboooooo



4 SEQ E™ E™R

q %y ED)

(a) & gne n *93 , [é' ,ﬁse ¢ and la k. I es (continued)

China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000

4 O 00Oooo

111

g

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gooooood

Q)0O00D0D00000Oooo

Cea s s Sk yyng fa r bl skl
oooo oooo oa
,!l 2016 20 2016 ,30 2016
ooooo ooooo DDDE[ ooooo 0oooo ooooo
Y Boe RMBO0O | * B0e RMBO0O | * B00 RMB'000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
Revenue from external customers 00ooono P 608,469 4958 107718 | 3,00R4, 716,87
Inter-segment revenue ooooo i = 0,30 = 0,30 =
ne * higse gne fe @ nf ooooooo o83 608,469 6:263-2 107718 | 30,88 716,187
78 o hMse gt Hgs) 0ooooooo
Be® Bgtan oomooo 5036, 500,622 409 (262627)| R 033 327,995
Depreciation and amortisation ooooo gq S84 88,146 9404 29,788 o 382 117934
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment oooooooo
losses on property, plant and equipment, DOO0OO0MmM 000000
net (0059 (396451) 184854 | (, 00.%9]  (211597)
Reversal of impairment losses ooooon i )
on coal mining rights oooooo e ¥9.488L|  (371199) - (,!,,,06,455), (371,199)
Reversal of impairment losses 0oooooo i
on trade receivables, net oooooooo (4 439) (13,568) - Ca 0) (13568)
Reversal of impairment o0ooooooooo
losses on prepayments ooooooooo
and other receivables, net §40) (7.809) - §409) (7.809)
Recovery of bad debts previously oooooooo
written off (ae0) - - (a4g) -
Wavier of management fee payables oooooooooo
and safety supervision fee payables 0oooo (50, &), : : (50, &), :
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, ~ 00000000000
plant and equipment 0oo0moooo (FAAR (404) 70929 (FAAR 70525
" L EL N 00o00o0oo 043,30 | 5745078 43490 428635 |  0%423 6,174,613
Addition to non-current assets 0000000 64, B, 149,821 30 3,207 65063 153,028
e L hKse g tigky s ooooooo (o4 6 )| (10454739) ‘9? , 3| (1015360) | (344, 24| (1L470099)
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TCOR
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4 JO000ooo
(b)DDDDDDDDDDDDDD

ooomooooooo

Revenue 0o
N 2016
goood goood
T  Boeee RMB’000
goooad ooooad
Total of reportable segments revenue ooooooooo 3,!71,-,. 716,187
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ooooooon ’,,0, 30) —
Consolidated revenue oooo 3,004, 716,187
Profit/(loss) before taxation 00000 mooo
N 2016
ooooaod ogoood
®  B0ee RMB’000
gogooad goooad
Total of reportable segments profit before taxation OOOO0OO0OOO0OO0OO0OO0O e 033 327,995
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses oooDooDoooood ( ,-29) (8,073)
Net finance costs oooooog 3.2 ) (446,955)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation 0o0oooDoDomoono 46-8 44 (127,033)

Annual Report2017 OO0 O OOOO

&



4 SEQ ER E*R
(b)-"i & la ter? e‘-ve

Assets

q %y ED)
"Eﬁ s€ gne n‘l'"eﬂ n%e , ‘re‘,i‘
(QS) B ‘f'e 5 k) t,n,asse ¢ and la k. L ts (continued)

China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000 113

-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gooooood

4 O 00Oooo

(wDOODOODOOODOOOOO
O00Mmooo00000ooo

uad

N 2016
gooono goooo
®  Beee RMB’000
goooo ogooogd

Total of reportable segments assets go0oOoooooao 0 .%.23 6,174,613
Elimination of inter-segment receivables gooDooooooo ® AL (522,604)
Unallocated assets ooooo 6 6, 10,423
Consolidated total assets oooooo 0,924, 5,662,432
Liabilities =

~0 2016
goooo goooo
®  B0eee RMB’000
gooon ooooo

Total of reportable segments liabilities ooooooooon e 11,470,099
Elimination of inter-segment payables 00ooooooooo (' 30.9ER,) (1,349,211)
Tax payable oooo 7%,63-2 242,050
Deferred tax liabilities oooooo B LA 205,673
Unallocated liabilities 0ooo0o0 B4 15128
Consolidated total liabilities oooooo ,BQ,, -%59 | 10,583,739
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C( ) ﬁegalh ‘n}.n‘a ten

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s total assets are primarily
dominated by assets handling its coal business and shipping
transportation business. The coal is sold primarily to the PRC
domestic customers and investments in all coal mines are
physically located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets are almost
all located in the PRC. The vessels are primarily deployed across
geographical markets for shipping transportation throughout the
world. As a result, the directors of the Company consider that it will
not be meaningful to allocate the Group’'s assets and their related
capital expenditure to specific geographical areas. Accordingly,
geographical segment information is only presented for revenue,
which is based on the geographical location of customers.

4 [J000ooo
d)ooono

oob00ooooObO0ooooooooon
dooouooooooooboobobibod
ddoooooooooobobobobobn
goooooooooboboboboobooODnnD
ooooooooooooooooboon
ooooooooooooboboobbobon
o00O0oooobOOooooObOoooon
oobOO00ooobOOooooObOooooon
ubobooobboooboooan

Revenue from external customers oooooao
.0 2016
ooooao oooono
® B0 RMB’'000
ooooo ooooo
PRC oo I 641,359
Other countries oooo , 60 74,828
Total 0o 3,00R4, 716,187
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Notes: (continued)

(iv) On 31 December 2017, a PRC state-owned enterprise, who is

s, E, A \I&A\ID $>E% ¢, )

China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000

1417/
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gooooood

6 000000 0O0Odooo
00Doo

responsible for providing management services and safety supervision (iv) B E S E S DD I:JD IZID S SDDDDDE E [ID DD I:JD [IDZIB
to Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Xinglong Coal Co., Ltd. (“Xinglong Coal”) and
Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Hongyuan Coal Co., Ltd. (“Hongyuan Coal”), B [ID:JDEI DD DI:I D[I DD DI:I % DI:I % DD DI:I %DS EI B B
has waived its amounts due from the Group in total of approximately
RMB160,753,000 and such gain has been acpqunted for as waiver_ of ?6% 7DSE ODOEEIDDDDDDDDDDDDDD% D[I DI:I % % B
m:;r;aeg‘];ment fee payables and safety supervision fee payables during 0 D’IZI I:III] 00O0O0OoooOoO0
GE-- GA\CECpS & 0oo0ooO
,}l 2016
ogooood ooooo
R Boeee RMB’000
ogoooad goooo
Interest income oooo GemL. (984)
Interest on borrowings gooa 33-2 ln.:, 419,895
Penalty interest on overdue borrowings oooooooo B.6 23,476
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts (Note28) D OO OO0 OO OO OO 280 29, 4,568
Less: interest capitalised into property, ooooooooood
plant and equipment (Note (i)) 00ooooood@o (.:, , 83) —
Finance costs oooo 3 -2 447939
Net finance costs oooood 32 446,955
Note: ooo
() During the year ended 31 December 2017, the finance costs have () COOODODOOOOoOOODOOOOOO
been capitalised at a rate of 6.63% per annum. No finance costs were Oo00o0oo0000e6.63%00000000
capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2016. ooooooooooooobODbODoODOOOD
oooooo
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L 4

b
A%y (WSSBERE AA

A 0000 MmoOoO0

Q) %o t(ss) R .8 b 3 tens a.. @ da ¥ .gng Q)0D0DD0OmMmDODOODDOOOOOOO
2@ 2016
0oooo ooooo
T Beee RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Cost of inventories (Note (i) 00ooooo@o 10820 3 675,625
Minimum lease payments under operating lease: oobDOoobDOOooooooD o
— properties Ooo P 14,581
—vessels ooo 1-3‘,?-!: 4,734
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Oo0OooooooOo
(Note 14) 000140 hp ie 96,513
Amortisation of coal mining rights (Note 15) oooooboooooaso 26 -2 21,319
Amortisation of lease prepayments (Note 16) ooo0oobooooooiled 40 140
Property, plant and equipment written-off (Note 14) OO0 00O OO0OO0O OO OO0 OO 140 B3, .o 2,090
Auditor’s remuneration ooooo
—audit services ooood IO 1,852
—non-audit services oooooo 1) 1130
Management and safety supervision fees payable oooooboooooo
(see Note 6(iv)) 0000e(iv)d 48,090
Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ oooooobooobooono
and chief executive’'s remuneration (Note 10)) 0o000dO0oO0Odmooi1oO
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Ooooooooooo 334, 132,547
— Contributions to retirement benefit schemes Ooooooooo 3,303 5,260
— Share-based payments 0o0o0ooooooon 93 5,232
34.2993 143,039
Note: ogo
(i) Cost of inventories included approximately RMB421,379,000 (2016: () bO00o0O00DO00D0O0000D00O0O00
RMB180,418,000) relating to employee benefit expenses, depreciation Ooooooooooooooooooaon
of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of coal mining 0 0421,379,00000 00000000 O
rights which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts 180,418 omooooooooooo
aoooo ooo0ooooooooono
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1 4

)
ANy (_ bSSBER E A A gy ¥

Wre B sale - mp.,ne tisses o

A 0000 MMO0Goo

(wooooooono

N 2016
ooooao ooooao
®  B'000 RMB’000
gpoooag ogooogd

Reversal of impairment losses on property, oooDoooooooo
plant and equipment, net (Note 14) 000000000140 (Q,O-l,-l-a (211,597)
Reversal of impairment losses on coal miningrights 000000000000
(Note 15) 000150 (1,796 4 56), (371,199)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables, 000000000000
net (Note 21) 000O0oDOOoe210 (4 436) (13,568)
Reversal of impairment losses on prepayments dooooooooooo
and other receivables, net (Note 22) 0000000 0O00O0220 (6,1-09) (7,809)
(4 44.9 49) (604,173)
[ 4 L
bob
® (C», EAEESE ® 00000
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of oooooooooooooooo
comprehensive income represents:

,30 2016
ogoooao ooooaa
®  B0ee RMB’000
ooooao ooooad

Current tax expense gooooo
— PRC Corporate Income Tax oooooooa ,945., 9,288
— Over-provision of PRC Corporate ooooOooooo
Income Tax in prior years 0Do0oo000 ( .agom[, (2,515)
Deferred tax (Note 18) O000000ooaisno 9 % 182,921
Income tax expense ooooo 9%, 189,694
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0o
31 Dece

gooono
mber2017 000000000000

L 4 L 4

!
® C», EAE ESEq,

(i)

(i)

(iii

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(2016: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries did not
have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the year (2016: Nil).

) Provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on the
statutory rate of 25% (2016: 25%) of the assessable profits of
subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the PRC.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit/(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of

9 J00O0OOooo
(i)

0oooooooooooooooo

gboboooboobbooobodd
uboobooboboooboonood

RN

(i)

0oooooooooooooooo

ooboooooooobOoooooo
ooboooo0omooooobooooo
oboooooooooboooo

gmoboOoOooCoOoO00oO0ooooooobooo
A A I W 2217
obooboonogo2s%bnoooon

doodoooooooobobobboboibn

gboboomooooooo:

comprehensive income as follows:
2@ 2016
ooooo ooooo
® B0 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Profit/(loss) before taxation ooooocmoog 46-8 44 (127,033)
Notional tax expense on profit/(loss) before taxation, 000000000000
calculated at the applicable tax rates O0moooooooooo , 6 8-l 48,363
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 00000000 oooo
oooo 4.2.9 150,019
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ooooooooooao 59, 34 33
Tax effect of non-taxable incomes gooooooooo (AAI-,GSQ., =
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised oobDOoobOooooono
oooo 896
Utilisation of tax loss and temporary difference ooooooooog
not recognised in prior years ooooooooo (,, 96-9) (7102)
Over-provision of PRC Corporate 0o00Doo0ooooogo )
Income Tax in prior years gooo ( 9698 [, (2,515)
Income tax expense goooog 967,09 189,694
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y

om Ec%s.A DCHLE EC '-'
Ay,
\

Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

ES enonoObOOOd

obooooooooon

Sfs, Conlk fo
ale an®s  LEI0R,
LYK Bet Sh¢ bt d !
D 1s'ee akd e Rms  SRih o ghed RY
oooooo oooo gooooo ooooo
gooo gooo oooo oo ooo oo
" B T B " B " B " B T B
\ﬁmg;d-‘i *,s gooo goooo goooo goooo goooo goooo goooo
B, P d§ b 0o0oo
Mr. XuDa oooo ., , ., 36 ] "
Mr. Bai Tao (Note (i) 00000000 96 3, i, 234! a3y
Ms. Wang Jianfei ooooo 6.4 38 i X3 i X3
Mr. Fung Wai Shing (Note (ii) 00000000 6; 06 i, , a 9,2 ) "
Mr. Liu Jinghong (Note (ii) 00000000 :!l‘! , B 34 360
n® Fofnthen® § B4R bs ooooooo
Mr. Huang Guosheng 0oooo 20 i, 7R A
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen ooooo 3 3 3,4
M. Xing Zhiying 00000 40 0 y
4R, L5 3 ', B A,
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L 4

b
oD EC%S.’A\IDC‘*E,E EC % E& 000000000 Oooo
) (5
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  toretirement
and benefits benefit Share-based 2016
Directors fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
ooooon gooo gooooo ooooo
oooo goaoo goaoo oo ooo 0o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors oooo ooooo ooooo 0oooo goooo ooooo ooooo
Ei}tﬂd& f,$ oooo
Mr. Xu Da ooon 292 373 4 669 - 669
Mr. Bai Tao (Note (i)) ooopooomo 642 757 21 1,426 - 1,426
Ms. Wang Jianfei ooooo 674 496 19 1189 - 1189
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu") (Note (iii)) 00000mMOoDDmm oo (o 617 678 25 1,320 - 1,320
Mr.Ma Baofeng (Note (iv)) 00000000 (vo 289 674 - 963 - 963
n@;n@ntnenei,‘tpd‘i t,s goooooo
Mr. Huang Guosheng ooooo 240 - - 240 30 270
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen ooooo 325 - - 325 30 355
Mr.Xing Zhiying ooooo 240 - - 240 30 270
3319 2978 75 6,372 920 6,462
Notes: oono
() Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the Company, is also the chief () O0DoO0DO0ooOo0OooOoO0O0ooOoOooOoO0O0
executive of the Company. oooo
(i) Mr. Fung Wai Shing and Mr. Liu Jinghong were appointed as executive (i) 000000000 000000O0000
directors of the Company with effect from 12 April 2017. gooboboboooooobboooo
(iiiy Mr. Xu resigned as an executive director of the Company on 8 (i O 00oooO0oooDoDoODoODODODODOOoOCOoOD
December 2016. goooo
(iv) Mr. Ma Baofeng retired and ceased to be an executive director of the (v 0O OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0O0O00O0O0O0O0O000O0
Company on 23 June 2016. gooooooooooo

There were no amounts paid during the year (2016: Nil) to the
directors in connection with their retirement from employment with
the Group, or inducement to join.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid to or for the executive
directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
those persons' other services in connection with the management
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E ;,IXEEES-Q\ID&E\I 8§ AAE E(S

b \
Em!kées ® mg ne o
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
include four (2016: three) directors of the Company, whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details
of remuneration paid to the remaining one (2016: two) highest paid
individuals of the Group are as follows:

gooooood

odgoobbooodad

ooon

ugooooooooobobbobooodaad
ubooooooboobooobobooobo
goooooooooobobboObooooan
goooobobbooboooboboDbo
gooooono

N 2016

ooooo ooooo

® B0 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind go0oOooooooa ,06.:, 1,734
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes gooooooo B 19
Share-based payments oooooooon 1,595
, 3 3,348

The emoluments of the remaining one (2016: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

gbOoboobobobOobooboobonbo
gooooon

,3. 2016
gooon goooo
wm B, ," Number of

HKD nd-dd ag individuals
od ood aood

1,000,001 — 1,500,000 -
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1

There were no amounts paid during the year (2016: Nil) to the five
highest paid employees in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

goooooooooobbbbooooo
gooooooooboooOoOOooO0ooogo
ooboooOoooomm
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E %

DSE @
\ LS
E h u E\l S-(cw N ED)

® e Maaf n® 8 m e ¢
The emoluments of the four (2016: six) senior management of the
Group who are not directors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 were within the following bands:

AAE E,| &

Oddbibb0ddUooo

ooooboooo

dooooooooooboboboboobn
gbobobooooboobooboooon
ooobbooooboobooooooao

,20 2016

goood goood

N mE ,-' Number of

HKD ndNd a$ individuals
oo oo oo
500,001 — 1,000,000 o -
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 ,: 4
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 ) 1
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1

Of the senior management of the Group, eight (2016: eight, including
one director who resigned and one director who retired) were the
directors of the Company, whose emoluments are included in Note

10.

%, B Cy, VENES E Gy, E

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

O0oo0oooooooooooooooo
oo0ooobOooooobObOoooooon
ooooooooooooooooooao

00100

,0oooon

00000000D0000000000

income:
7. 2016
goooao agoooo
B ",,9 b 1 ay f *," 1 \ Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amg o € J; e amy, . amount expense amount
oooo oooao oooa gooao oooo oooao
" B " B T B RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
goooo ooooo goooo goooo goooo ooooo
Foreign currency translation differencesfor ~ 00000000000
foreign operations 0o { 34, (3.9.) 24,524 - 24524
Foreign currency translation differences ooooCoooDDOoO0o h
reclassified to profit or loss upon goooooooo
disposal of subsidiaries (.q (.9) - - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 000o00omon { 400, ( 400 24,524 = 24,524
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3ER (&S B SRE
Bae: € a.n'n® (Ié‘s ) ;»vs [ 4
The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the
profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 are based on the following data:

gooooood

oo mogon
000000 mooa
000000mMO00000000000

oboobooobooOomobooooooo
gooboooooooad

oooObOooooOboooocobooooon
ooobOooooObOooocobOoooon
ob0omobooobobobooooon

N 2016
ooooo ooooo
T Boee RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to O0Do0oooOooDoon
equity shareholders of the Company oo0moogd 3, hea49 (330,542)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual Jo0Do0dooooogo
subordinated convertible securities classified oooooooooo
as equity (Note 29(c)) 00029(c)d (5,030)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 00000000 M ooood
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company ooooobooobooon
used in calculating basic earnings/(loss)pershare 0000 M OO0 3, Bgz49 (335,572)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares O0000000 mooood
for the purpose of basic earnings/(loss) oooooood
per share ,2,493,4 39-%, 2493 413,985
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30000 MO0 Woo
ooooobomooo

ooobOoooobOOoooobObOooon
goooobooboboooooooogogd
goboDmoooobooobooon

ooobOOoooooOboooooboooon
ooooOoooobObOoooobobooooo
goobOoooobOoOoooobOboooon
oooooooooOoooooboboooon
goobOoooobDOoooobooooD
ooog

ob0obOooOobOobOobOooboooboon
goobOoooobOOoooobObooooo
gooooboboboobobooooooogadad
ggooooooooboobbobobooooo
gooooooo
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gooooood

4% B VYA ADR Y E 400000000
NN ; N
*nand ande ®, o 8 6
T I E AL A T B T L sl
goocoo g0 0oooooo oo oo goooo gooo oo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
goocoo goooo goooo goooo goooo goooo goooo goocoo
Gl oo
At 1 January 2016 gooooooooo 1,026,154 975,003 45,350 173114 1,330,801 1703192 1,221,072 6,474,686
Additions oo 55505 19,294 2,202 4569 3,207 12,843 105,408 153,028
Disposals 0o = = @ (2237) (635,235 = = (637476)
Written-off 0o (2,090) - - - - - - (2,090)
Exchange differences o0ooo 35 - - 9% 47057 - - 47187
At 31 December 2016 poooooooooooo
and 1 January 2017 0000000000 (XTI U & g R AT LT S VE N YL
Additions 0o oy By 05§ 60, ik 30 o0t 5063
Transfer from assets oooooo i A i A A
under construction 10E, [ ] § o 36 )
Disposal of subsidiaries oooooo i (g o i (.8
Disposals oo ( &y, €&y,
Written-off oo (KM, () 6,036)
Exchange differences ooon l3) ’703) K 6, )
At31 December 2017 0000000000000 0,90 8, 9 Kt A 3 “, [T L Gy
& matde gty 000000000
and M a,m® st
At 1 January 2016 0000000000 (637976) (694:339) (41533 (135,260) (689.949)  (L04L813) (195826  (4036,695)
Charge for the year 0ooo (18,035) (29611) (343 (5441) (28107) (11,886) - (96,513)
Reversal of impairment oooo
losses/(impairment losses) oomooooo 37630 68,629 1141 2811 (184,854) 75,316 210,858 211597
Disposals oo - - 5 1,986 511979 - - 513,970
Exchange differences oooo (35) - - (83) (12,783) - - (12,901)
At 31 December 2016 and 00000000oo0OoOnOn
1January 2017 000000000 § 9) oz, 0 g 40 (3R9, ) uig, 4 b n.9) (g954 ‘3,430&)
Charge for the year oooo (9.99) Caz0m, 3, 1) ) (368, 8, ) (ie)
Accumulated impairment ooooooo
losses transferred from gooooo
assets under construction 6 &), (93.9) (363) 283 C, . 283
Reversal of impairment losses 000000 L0 33 38 .8 3 0R Y, 6 330, 0K, e
Disposal of subsidiaries oooooo 1] ) i 1]
Disposals oo 0, Wy
Witen-off ili a i ¥
Exchange differences 0ooo 3 “ B4 2388
At 31 December 2017 0000000000000 {83 fa o) (3999 ) (45 L R (¥ ¥
fe a,,).ngarn,} o 0ooo
At 31 December 2016 ooooooooooooo 411188 338,977 3728 39,620 342116 737652 741512 2,614,793
At31 December 2017 0000000000000 MaR, G, " 5,13 308, 33,93 LR Y )
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4N B VYA ADg, HOEG Oy )

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain items
of plant and buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately RMB860,015,000 (2016: RMB382,876,000) as at 31
December 2017. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and use the
above mentioned properties and therefore the aforesaid matter
does not affect the ownership rights of the Group over these assets
and hence did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial position as at 31 December 2017.

The Group's property, plant and equipment with net carrying amount
of approximately RMB1,373,638,000 (2016: RMB1,110,714,000)
were pledged for borrowing (Note 27), as follows:

4J0000000ooo

oobOoooobObOooooObOoooon
000000000 Dn0ase0,015,000000
O000000D0OD0382876,00000000
dodooooooooobooboobooon
oooooooooooooboboboobDbDn
gooobOoOOo0oooooooooooo
o000oooobOO0OooooObOoooon
obobOobobOoooooocoooon

ob0oobo0oo0obooDi373,638,0000

oo0oo0ooobOonboliio,714,0000 00

ooooooOoOoOOCOCOoOOoOooooooo
27o0oooon

.0 2016
ogoooao ogoooao
®  Beee RMB’000
goooad goood

Plant and buildings ooooo 9 433 117477
Machinery 00 ,1.660 145,643
Electronic and other equipment oooooog ) ?,60 2,679
Motor Vehicles oo 3,6, 17,959
Vessels 0O 3 05, 342116
Mining structures ooooao ig, 0 484,840

,3 3,63-2 1110,714

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain vessels of the
Group suffered operating loss, as a result, the Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of each of its vessels as at 31 December
2016. The net carrying amounts of the vessels were written down
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As at 31 December 2017, with the continuing significant favorable
change in market circumstances in its coal business segment,
the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment, together with coal mining rights of coal business
segment of the Group, in the manner described below.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, each coal mine
constituted a CGU, as a result, property, plant and equipment
together with coal mining rights related to each CGU were assessed
for impairment by reference to the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which they belonged. Each CGU's recoverable amount was
assessed independently of the other CGUS' recoverable amounts.

The estimates of recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2017 of
each of the CGUs containing the property, plant and equipment and
coal mining rights in the coal business segment were based on their
values in use with reference to respective professional valuation
reports issued by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers.

Details of the determination of values in use of the CGUs are set out
in Note 15(iv).

As at 31 December 2017, as a result of the determination that
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs were higher than their
net carrying amounts, impairment losses of approximately
RMB2,087,848,000 (2016: RMB396,451,000) recognised in prior
periods for property, plant and equipment was reversed and
recognised as reversal of impairment losses, net in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year.

gooooood
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goooobooobooboboooooao
goooooooboooobobboObooooo
gooboooobooobboooooo

00000000000 00000000
15(iv)00

oooooooobooooooooooo
oooObOooooOboooocobooooon
oboo0oooobOoOooooObooooon
O00ooo2087,848,000000 000
obO0oos96451.0000000000¢0
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gooooooo
31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

X R
BgpA (T VS Q0000
RMB’000
ooooo
Cst 00
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, O000000000oOo0ooooon
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 ggoooooobooobobooog
oooooocoooood 4 6,9,
& M a¥damg, Satanand Mg e\ tisses D000o0O0O00o
At 1 January 2016 oooooooooo (2,834,164)
Charge for the year (Note (ii)) 0000oodi)o (21,319)
Reversal of impairment losses (Note (iii)) 0000ooooao (o 371,199
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 gjodoooooooboboobooog
oooo (?’l-..l.m.l;)
Charge for the year (Note (ii)) 000ooooadi)o (.2 6 -9
Reversal of impairment losses (Note (iii) 000000000 (o nyn 88,486
At 31 December 2017 goooooooooooo (3 5o _Reg)
§ anngame, né oooo
At 31 December 2016 goboooooobooooo 2,292,588
At 31 December 2017 oooooooooocoono 44 366
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N N t ({ S.(C‘:\l q ED)

The balance represents the rights to conduct mining activities
in Shanxi Province. All the mine sites are located on lands in the
PRC to which the Group has no formal title of ownership, hence
none of the carrying amount of lease prepayments (see Note
16) relate to these lands. The Department of Land Resources
of Shanxi Province issued and renewed several mining rights
certificates to the Group. Details of the Group’s coal mining
rights are as follows:

Cea M-y ng, ghd Ey.)@e
Xingtao Coal Mine 14 October 2018
Fengxi Coal Mine 24 January 2034
Chongsheng Coal Mine 14 October 2018
Xinglong Coal Mine 29 February 2016
Hongyuan Coal Mine 12 October 2017

Up to the date of this report, coal mining rights of Xinglong Coal
Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine were expired. Management is
in the process of renewing these certificates. With reference
to the legal opinion received by the management, the Group
will be able to continuously renew the mining rights and the
business licenses of respective mining subsidiaries at minimal
charges.

Amortisation of the coal mining rights is based on the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves
in the depletion base. Amortisation expenses of approximately
RMB81,678,000 (2016: RMB21,319,000) have been charged in
cost of sales.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group'’s coal mining rights with net
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,417,366,000 (2016:
RMB2,292,588,000) were pledged for borrowings (Note 27).
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ooOoO0O0O00osiersoootddd
O0D00000D021,319,000000 00
ooobOooOooon

(0 0o0o0DOO0O0oooDOOo0ooooo

O0oo0O0O0oO0oo4,417,366,00000 0
O0000D0OD0D0O 02292,588,0000 0
goobooboooobooboooonoog
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gooooood

(iv) (continued) (iviooo
As at 31 December 2016
oooooooooooo
Recoverable
Recoverable amount
amount allocated
Pre- allocated to property,
tax discount to coal plant and
rate of CGU  mining rights equipment
ooog ooo oOooood
ooo oooooad gooooao
ooooo ooooo ooooo
CGU RMB’'000 RMB’000
ooooood ooooo ooooo
Xingtao Coal Mine oooo 14.0% 906,454 381,546
Fengxi Coal Mine oooo 141% 696,197 628,803
Chongsheng Coal Mine ooog 13.6% 392,064 650,936
Xinglong Coal Mine oooag 16.2% 202121 259,879
Hongyuan Coal Mine ooog 16.2% 95,752 317,248
2,292,588 2,238,412
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31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

6 EASE™ E*Av E &

elOoOoOO

a r‘d "Se ».Aghé

ooooo
RMB’000
goooad
Cst o0
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, JooddooDooooooooo
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 gododoooooooobobooboboo
gdddooooooon 6,99.2
& M p¥damg 55t oDooo
At 1 January 2016 00oO0ooDooo (1,785)
Charge for the year (Note (i) 00ooooo@o (140)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 oooooooooooooan
oDooooooo (o B,
Charge for the year (Note (i) 00oooog@o A )
At 31 December 2017 00o000o0oDoDoooooog (,,,OGQ‘.
§e an®nga Ma, né 00oo
At 31 December 2016 goooooobooooD 5,073
At 31 December 2017 goooooboooobooo 4933
(i) Amortisation expenses of approximately RMB140,000 (2016: () OD0OOO0OO140,00000 000000

RMB140,000) have been charged in administrative expenses.

(i) As at 31 December 2016, the Group's lease prepayments with (i)
net carrying amount of approximately RMB5,073,000 were
pledged for borrowings (Note 27). During the year, respective
borrowings were settled and corresponding pledged lease

prepayments were released.
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gooooood

\IBES- \IA\IASS.»CAE gooooooooaoo
2@ 2016
oooono ooooo
®  B000 RMB’000
oooono ooooo
Unlisted investment: oooooo
Unlisted shares, at cost Oo0oOooooooa 49 000 49,000
Share of loss oooo (,,433) (2,433)
Impairment loss oooo (AGA,‘G-,) (46,567)
The following list contains the particulars of an associate: Ooo00Dooooonooooon
?'e_p' tane e £ ynEest
ooooooa
Yo Al
| e, f e o s apd
. 0 ® o eg B ) ‘e d Wa Y
\'ane o SSe i €s sbﬁ [0 nt Ane,gs t Cemﬁn) S" [ Ada,) e‘e;.,a ten
oono oooon
ooooono agooao oooo oooono oooooo oooo
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC 49% - 49% Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa”) gad (2016: 49%) (2016: 49%) in the PRC
d0oDoooooooooon 49% 49% oooooo
Moooom oooooono oooooon
49%0 49%[]
Tongmei Qinfa sells coal in the PRC and is a strategic partnership 00000000000 OoOoOoooooo
for the Group for its coal business. odooooooooooo
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B ES (AASS4CAEG, 000000000 Oooo
The Group had discontinued recognition of its share of losses of doooooooooooboobooooO
Tongmei Qinfa since the year ended 31 December 2016 because gbboooboooboobbooobooo
its cumulative share of losses in the associate had exceeded its goboobooooboooobooboan
investment cost less accumulated impairment losses. The amounts ooboooooboooooooooon
of unrecognised shares of the associate, extracted from the 0do0o0ooooobooooooooooo
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for year and Oooooooooooon

cumulatively, are as follows:

N 2016
goooad gooodad
T B0l RMB’'000
goood goood

Unrecognised share of loss of dopoooooooooooo
an associate for the year ooooo 643 8,939

Accumulated unrecognised share of ooooooooooooo

loss of an associate oooon B3k 8,939
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Q) Be.edh gese ¢
Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of the deferred
tax assets during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

gooooood

A 0000000 on
Q)0O00o000

o0ob0o0ooobOOoooooOOoooooo
tdoouoooooooooooobobn
oo

At

3 ®emPe,
Ch.8d % 206,
R s el‘@eq Jan#a.)
At s hene t-” 2@ apd

Jana® ¢ MERSE 3 REemR,

.06 @ 0

) 0ooooo

000

ooooo

onooon

ooo ooooo

oooooo ooooo ooooo

oDooo 00 OOD0O0O000
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ooooo Doooo ooooo

Pe,edh gss® da,5 g v 000000000000
ooQ

Tax losses carried forward ooooooo 690 (690) —

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB2,683,736,000 (2016:
RMB3,097,875,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which these losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entities. The tax loss will expire within
five years.

oooooOobOobOoOoocoooooan
oooooOooOoboooocooooon
oboocoooooobooooooooo
2,683,736,000000 0 O O OO DO OO
3,097,875,0000 00 00O0D0O0000ODOO
ooooDOooooon
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1 4

\
-ADE_B® ED A ASSE SAD AB E%q, ,w

WEe.edhyakt®s

Deferred tax liabilities recognised and the movements of the
deferred tax liabilities during the years ended 31 December 2017

A 0000000 dooo
(WmOoOoOooo0o

oooooOobOooooooboooon
doduoooooooooooooon

and 2016: oo
Ch.£d LR
¢ of otda® d
At s hene At
Jan',av) cemfﬁﬁﬂ 3 EemB,
N 6 N N
00
oooooo oooo oooooo
gooo ogoo oooboooobo
®  B0ee ®  B0ee ® B0
ooooo ooooo ooooo
Fe.edhyabt®sas g, 0000000000
ooooo
Revaluation surplus arising from goooobooooogd
business combinations 2.8, 90 3 4 9.8 46
Depreciation allowances in excess gooooooooo )
of the related depreciation and oood
amortisation 43, % e 9h36-2
?.E,e, 3 9 ?,.m , .n’i‘@
Charged to the
consolidated
At statement of At
1January  comprehensive 31 December
2016 income 2016
00
oooooo oooo oOooood
ooono 000 DoOooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo ooooo
Pe.edhyakt®sa,s g em 0000000000
ooooo
Revaluation surplus arising from gobooobooooog
business combinations 15,352 66,480 81,832
Depreciation allowances in excess oooooooood
of the related depreciation and oood
amortisation 8,090 115,751 123,841
23,442 182,231 205,673
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As at 31 December 2017, the Company has direct and indirect

interests in the subsidiaries, all of which are private companies. The
particulars of the major subsidiaries are set out below:
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gooooood

spOououoonbod

oobOO00ooooObOO0OooobOoooon
uooooooooooboboboobobofn
tooooooooooooooobobb

ooooood
"‘vepv fane’s £ "‘]‘ne?s *
ooooooa
%

: vh ol

AN 'hﬂf e dw s edapd « htsgd

. Chbene,t 0% @ R egw LPpd, po e

\,ﬂne g(: gmﬁn) (] cv"pva ten ‘nevves i Cemfn) s i B .da,es ve g Gv‘e (] a]{l e; a ten
ooooo ooag oooo ooooo goooooo ooooo

oooo oooo oooo oo oo oooo oooo
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% - USD4,801/ Investment
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands  (2016:100%)  (2016: 100%) USD50,000  holding in the PRC
0000000000000 m 000000 0DO00O0O0O0 oOOOoOO 480100 O oooo
100%00 100%0 50,0000 0 00

Hong Kong Qinfa International Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD689,635,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Limited 00  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) N/A and investment
000000000000 ooooooao ooooooo 689,635,0000 0 O holding
100%0 100%0 00O in the PRC

o0ooo

oooao

oo

Qinhuangdao Development Zone The PRC 100% - 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. ® 00  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) RMB68,000,000 in the PRC
00000000o000oOO00o oo0ooooao 0000000 DO0O068,000,0000 O 0000
100%0 100%0 000 68,000,0000 oo

Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. © The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
oooooooooo® OO0  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) RMB5,000,000 in the PRC
goooooo ooooooo 00 05,000,0000 O oooao

100%0 100%0 0 0 05,000,0000 oo

Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. @ The PRC 100% - 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
oooooooooo® 00  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) HKD315,000,000 inthe PRC
goooooao ooooooo 315,000,0000 0 O oooo

100%0 100%0 315,000,0000 O oo

Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Investment The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd. © (“Shuozhou Guangfa”) 00  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) RMB10,000,000 holding
00o0000ooooooo® ooooooao 0000000 000100000000 O in the PRC
moooom 100%0 100%0 00 010,000,0000 0000
oo
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® E& E & (SESDR E%q, % 9000000 0ooo

?vepv tan s e fF h‘y‘ne?S t
ooooooo

: o pl

\‘e e' .‘,e" f ¢ d b) ' SS #e dand a 'N%s anq

. & bkp P\ ¢t 'F ® eldb) ‘A")ﬁ‘dwl J‘e"

\,ane o< ,mﬁn) Qo i tﬂ\ Anﬂ,?s t Cemﬁn) S" B .dg,bs £ geq a‘rs[ E;"a tﬂ\
goooo ooo gooo ooooo goooooo ooonoo

ooono gooo goono oo oo gooo ooono
Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group The PRC 80% - 80% RMB300,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd.? (“Huameiao Energy”) oo (2016: 80%) (2016: 80%) RMB300,000,000 holding
ooooooooooooo® goooocoon 00ooooo 0O00300,000,0000 O in the PRC
mooooom 80%L0 80%0  [0O00300,000,0000 gooo
oo

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 80% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining
Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., Ltd. © oo (2016: 80%) (2016: 80%) RMB129,590,000 and operation
(“Xingtao Coal”) goooooo gooooon0 D00O0129,590,0000 O in the PRC
ooooooOoooooooo 80%0 80%0 00 0129,590,0000 ooooooo
0o00moooom oo
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu The PRC 80% - 80% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining
District Huameiao Fengxi oo (2016: 80%) (2016: 80%) RMB32,000,000 and operation
Coal Co., Ltd. @ (“Fengxi Coal") goooooon oooooono 000320000000 0 in the PRC
cooobooOooooobooo 80%[] 80%0) [0 0032,000,0000 gooooon
oooomoooom oo
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu The PRC 80% - 80% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining
District Huameiao oo (2016: 80%) (2016: 80%) RMB107,290,000 and operation
Chongsheng Coal Co., Ltd. © goooocoo 0000000 000107,290,0000 O in the PRC
(“Chongsheng Coal”) 80%L0I 80%0 0 00107,290,0000 goooooo
ooooooOoooooooo oo

00o00Ymoooom

Xinglong Coal The PRC 100% - 100% RMBZ100,000,000/ Coal mining
goooo oo (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) RMB100,000,000 and operation
ooooooa go0ooco0 000100,000,0000 O in the PRC

100%0 100%0 [0 0100,000,0000 goooooo

N

Hongyuan Coal ¢ The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining
ooooo 00  (2016:100%) (2016: 100%) RMB100,000,000 and operation
gopoooog gooooono 000100,000,0000 O in the PRC

100%0 100%0 O 00100,000,0000 gooooon

oo
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9000000 0Uooo

ooooooa

| gl

LN b p LY 58 edapd @ Wesgd

_ es hhp N®t e R ® LY “Wad e
\Fne o< ,mﬁn) Qo ten Anﬁv,es t Cemﬁn) s, B .da,bs Egseeq a”jl e;v,a ten

ooooo 0oo opoo 00ooo ooooooo 00000

000D oooo oooao oo 00 oooo 0ooo
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD50,000/ Goods transport
(“Super Grace”) Islands  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
Super Grace Enterprises Limited 000000 0DOOOOOO ooooooo 50,0000 0 0 and charter hire
[ Super Gracel[l] 100%0 100%0 50,0000 O in worldwide
ooooooo

oooooo

oo

Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% usD1/ Goods transport
(“Oriental Wise”) Islands  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
Oriental Wise Group Limited oooooo ooooooo oooooog o0 and charter hire
[T Oriental Wise[™ 100%0 100%0 50,0000 O in worldwide
ooooooo

gooooa

0o
Qinfa Chartering Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% usp1/ Goods transport
Qinfa Chartering Limited Islands  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
000000 ooooooo goooooo 1000 and charter hire
100%0 100%0 50,0000 O inthe PRC

oopooooo

oooooo

oo
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% usb1/ Goods transport
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited Islands  (2016: 100%) (2016: 100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
000000 DOOOOOO ooooooo 1000 and charter hire
100%0 100%0 50,0000 O inworldwide

ooooooo

oooooo

oo
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900000 D00Uooo
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ooooo ooo oooo ooooo ooooooo ooooo
0ooo oooo oooo oo 0o oooo 0ooo
Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/ Goods transport
Shipping Limited 00  (2016:100%) (2016: 100%) N/A and logistics,
ooOoOoOooOoooo ooooooo ooooooo 10,0000 0 O and charter hire
100%0 100%0 oo in worldwide
ooooooo
0ooooo
0o
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD1,000/ Goods transport
Perpetual Goodluck Limited 00  (2016:100%) (2016: 100%) N/A and logistics,
goooooo goooooon 1,00000 O and charter hire
100%0 100%0 ooo in the PRC
ooooooo
oooooo
oo
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Goods transport
Co., Ltd.0 00  (2016:100%) (2016: 100%) RMB100,000,000 and logistics,
ooooooooooo ooooooo 0oooooo 0 005,000,000 O and charter hire
100%0 100%0 00 0100,000,0000 in the PRC
0oooooo
gooooa
oo
(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic companies. () D00DODOOOOOoDOoOoOooOoOoOooOo
(i) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign-owned (i) OO0DODOoDO0O0O0OODOoOooOoOoOoOoOoO

enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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(B> E & (SBSDR E%q, ¥ 9000000 0ooo

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's borrowings are oooooOooOoboooocooooon
Oo0000o0ooOoOooOoooooooood
O0oO00oOooooOoooooood
OO0D0OO0OO0OD0O0O0OO0ODOOOSuper Grace
OOriental WiseO O OO OO OOO0OO
2ro0ofo0oooOoooooooooo
OO000oO0ooOooOoooooooog
Oo0odoooooooooooomood
Oooooooooooooooood
00000000 0o00ooOoooooO
O000O000D0ODOO0O20,741,000000 0
0000000 20,856,0000

ooooocoocoobOoooooooao

obOooocoObOoooooomooonn
oMooooObobobooooobooooboon
oooooooooooboboboboboooo
oooo
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s \E= E & (S HEDR ESq, w0

900000 D00Uooo

»‘engjceal aoooo
N 2016
ooooao ooood
T  Boeee RMB’000
gogooad goooad
s at3 emp, gooooooo o
NCI percentage 0oo0oooo 20 o 20%
Non-current assets ooooo ~,0B-00R 1,325,000
Current assets oo0oao ) 6, 8 557872
Current liabilities Dooo ( BRg9e9)|  (1573,625)
Non-current liabilities ooooo (934,.) (59,741)
Net assets nooo 3,49 249,506
Carrying amount of NCI oooooood 66,49.2 49,901
D..ng R #a.8 \®#d3 K emB, 000000000000
Revenue oo 92,0, 83,300
Reversal of impairment loss on property, doooooooooo S
plant and equipment ogooo 60 .34 29,014
Reversal of impairment loss on coal mining rights O00O00o0oooooono .200,6 4 32124
Profit for the year oooo Ry 9% 4,287
Total comprehensive income gooooog ili,s-ln 4,287
Profit allocated to NCI goooooooood 6,6, 857
Cash flows generated from operating activities ooooooooo 63 3 3,920
Cash flows used in investing activities ooooooooo (e, R) (3,494)
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gooooooo
31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

® ADEA DB * ECE, AB ES-

»d

2 Uooooooooono

4

.0 2016

ogooon gooon

T B0ee RMB’000

oooon ooooo

Trade and bill receivables Oo0ooooooood ,034,.3 794171
Less: impairment oooo (R 34) (401,829)
LS 392,342

Q) A€ nBaa s

All of the trade and bill receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year. The Group'’s exposure to credit risk related to trade,
bill and other receivables is disclosed in Note 32(b)(i)

An ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables (net of impairment

loss) of the Group is as follows:

Q)oooao

goooooooooooboboboobbon
ooooooooooooboboobboDbD

ob00ooob0OoooObOooobooooboas2

(b))

gooooooboooa

gobboooboboooboboooobooo

~0 2016

goooa goooad

T  Beee RMB’000

ooooo ooood

Within 2 months oooog 339, 4.9 242172

Over 2 months but within 6 months 000000000000 36e, ke, 9,002

Over 6 months but within 1 year ooooooooooo o0 72

Over 1 year but within 2 years 000O0ooooooOo 3,h0e 54,158

Over 2 years (Note) oooooooo 22 6 86,938

-!2,-!1 392,342

Note: As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables aged over 2 000 000000000000 000O0O00Oad

years amounting to approximately RMB87,664,000 (2016: goooooooooOooas7,ee4,000

RMB79,860,000) were due from customers which the Group has gooooooooao 9,860,0000 O

trade and other payable balances with. Based on past experience goooooDooooooooooog

and repayment history of the trade debtors, the directors of the 000ODoDOoO0OoooooooOoooon

Company believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in goooooDoDoOOooooooooOoog
respect of these balances. Ooooooooooon

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from 0 to 60 days
(2016: 0 to 60 days) depending on customers' relationship with the
Group, their creditworthiness and past settlement record.

The ageing is counted from the date when trade and bill receivables

are recognised.
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gooooood

® ADEADB * ECE, AB E®(,,

Ma Mt e g da s

The movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

n

(wOoOoOoOoooOoo

ddudbibb0ddUooo

ob0obOobOooooooboobon

2@ 2016

ogoooao ooooao

R Boee RMB’'000

goooad gpoood

At 1 January ooooo 40 29 413,450
Reversal of impairment losses oooooo ( -!,563) (13,568)
Impairment losses recognised ooDoooood SR —
Bad debts written-off oooo ) (1,406)
Exchange differences oooa (3,046) BE58!
At 31 December oooooood .zi,al- 401,829

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables represents
provision for individually and collectively impaired trade receivables
of approximately RMB251,347,000 (2016: RMB401,829,000) with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB296,010,000 (2016:
RMB401,829,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to customers who did not make any settlement during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. Impairment losses of
approximately RMB178,563,000 (2016: RMB13,568,000) were
reversed as the respective impaired trade receivables being
impaired in prior years had been settled during the year.

v.ad’ and b‘llie g ﬁs th *a? ngt‘mﬁv‘ve d
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bill receivables that are

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

ubbobobboooboobboobood
0 0296010000000 000000DO
401,829, 000000 0D 00 OO0 O0ODO
Oo000000Doa251,347,000000
Oo0000dOdDoé401,829,0000 0 00O
OooobOobOoOoocooOoboon
OooooOobOooocoooboon
ubobooboboooobobooobood
0178,563,000000 O O O OO 0O O
135680000 00 0 0000O0ODODOODO
ooo0oooboObooobbooooobog

Ooooooooao

gooooobobobooboboood

udoooooooooobbobboood
obobooooboooon

.0 2016

goood goooad

R Boeee RMB’000

goooad goooad

Neither past due nor impaired ooooooo Q. 99.9 242179
Less than 1 year past due oooooo 34,999 9,066
Over 1 year past due gooooo 9 Bgs4 141,097
-9 A% 392,342
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”‘A»J
~

® ADEADB * ECE, AB E%q,, )
a®and bk © ks R o tm a8 d (ontinued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

) a5.8d an alds$ Wil tE§ Lgwed

®.e te ¥

At 31 December 2016, the Group sold certain trade receivables with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB33,365,000 to a factoring
company for financing facilities amounting to RMB20,000,000. At
31 December 2016, other borrowings of RMB19,980,000 have been
drawn down under this financing facilities. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risks relating to such
trade receivables, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full
carrying amounts of the trade receivables and the associated other
borrowings as at 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the respective other borrowings were settled and
there were no trade receivables held by the factoring company as at
31 December 2017.
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oooOo0ooooOoOooooooOooooon
ob0oooooOoooooooooooD
oooooboOooboooooo

()DOODODODOODOOOOO0O

doooooooooobobobooboofon
O0000D03833650000000000
oooooooooooooooboboon
gogzoooo0000bbpooOoOoOOO
oobOoooObOO0OOooooOoOoOoooon
19,980, 0000 0000000000 OODO
doooooooooobobobobobofbn
dooooooooboboobobobobn
ooooooooooooooooboon
ooooooooooooboobobobobon
ooOoooobOooooobOooooon
ob0oooobOoooooboooooon
ooObO0ooooobOO0oooooObooooon
gooo
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?“ADEA\IDB "!ECEV AB E&(,, .t O000O000000Oooo
€) a5€.,8d up al@std Wt €§ gsed R, €)0000000000O00OC0

e te ¥

At 31 December 2017, the G O0000oOoOoo0Ooo0ooooooooan
ooooooooooooobooooon
oooooooooooooboocoooan
O0000042,700,00000000000
00043170000 0000000000
00000000000 0000000a0
O00ooooo0ooobooooonbooooo
O000oOo0o0o0OoooOooooooooan
O00000MOoOo0O0OOOo0000n
Ooo0oo0oo0oooooooboocoooan
000000000 0oo0o0o0oooooaon
O0000o0oo00o0booooooooao
00000000000 0000000a0
0000000000 b0oO0000on0Onan
gbooooooooooobooboooon
OooooOoooooOooooooooon
00

>

oobOO0ooooObOOooobOoOooon
oobOoooobOoooooboooooo
obOoobOoooooobooomoooo
oooOoooooboooooooooooo
oboooooboooon

Y OoooOooOooOO

toooooooooooboboobobobnb
OD00000D0b33,3650000 000000
Oo0obOOooooooobozrmooooo
oobo0ooobOooooobbooooon
ooooo
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gooooooo
31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

% \
2a ¥ E*Av E &A Dy, NB® ECE AB ES 200000000000

O
O
O

0 O 130,940,0000
6,490,0000 OO O
3,915,000000 0O
oo OOOOOOO

(i)

oood
(i) OODO0DODOOOOOOO0OO0O
ooooooOooooOoooooooon
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aa ¥ E*Av E &A Dy, NB™ ECE AB E&
"oy,  ED)
Notes: (continued)

.3 ¥ ED

4

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of prepayments and other receivables (continued)

The movement in provision for impairment of prepayments and
other receivables during the year is as follows:

gooooood

??DDDDDDDDDDDDDD

oomoo

(iii)

ooooooooooooooooo

gobboobobooboboooooao
gooooo

.0 2016
ogoooao ooooao
® B0 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo

At 1 January gooog 4QR Q% 412,758
Impairment losses recognised Oooooooo Ege 5,397
Reversal of impairment losses recognised ooooooooog (6,909) (13,206)
Uncollectible amounts written-off jooooooo ( -0 (184)
Exchange differences oooo (.3-39 319
At 31 December gooooooo 39 66 405,084

Management regularly reviews the ageing and credit quality
of the Group’'s prepayment and other receivables. The above
provision for impairment of prepayments and other receivables
represents provision for individually impaired prepayments
and other receivables of approximately RMB397,667,000 (2016:
RMB405,084,000) with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB397,667,000 (2016: RMB405,084,000). The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to prepayments and other
receivables which the directors of the Company consider
that the chances of collection/utilisation of the outstanding
amounts are remote.

At the reporting date, 66.4% (2016: 91.2%) of the net
prepayments and other receivables was due from the five
largest other debtors. These five largest other debtors include
state-owned enterprise in the PRC and companies with good
past credit records with the Group.

{EDAD* ES® C EDDE*S &

Bank deposits of approximately RMB123,000 (2016: RMB174,000)
as at 31 December 2017 were pledged to banks to secure general
credit facilities.

Bank deposits of approximately RMB171,000 (2016: RMB1,939,000)
were restricted for use in relation to the litigation proceedings as
disclosed in Note 38(a)(iv).

ooooOoooooooooooo
gobooboboooobooooooad
gobbooboboobobooooon
0O 0000397,667,000000 000
00 000405,084,0000 000000
ooboboooobooboboooooo
0397,667,00000 0 0 000O0DO0O0O
405,084, 0000 D O 000D OODOO
oob0O0O0000oocooObO0OOoOoon
oooo0o0ooooooooooo
ooooood

gobooboboobboooboooooan
00664%100000091.2%00 0
goooobooooboooobog
gbooooboooobooobooog
oooooooooobooo

3000000000

ooooocoocooooooooooao
oboobi1z23o0000000000000O0OO
l74o0000000CO0O00COO0OOOO

ao

0O0O0D0D0D0O0D0171,000000 00 O
0000 01,939,0000 00 O O 38(a)(iv)O
O000000D000O0O0O00
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A4 CASN A DCAS-iEk YA EySa, W

( nNe & & ene la"'leS 'vem naqu\ ‘n8a N Bs
The table below details change in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

gooooood

AUUOOOOOUOOooo

d)00ooooooooon

oobOO0ooooObOO0oooobOooooon
boooooooobooooooobobn
uogooooooooobobobobobooo
ooooooooooobobobobobooo
oooooobood

Bevve n®
oo
RMB’000
ooooo
At 1 January 2017 00o000O0O0DoO0 6,043
Chn®s "e™ ragy n€ & K 8 OooOooO0ooO
Proceeds from borrowings oooooo 9.3
Repayment of borrowings good ( R )
0@ 4
At 31 December 2017 oooobOobOoooood 6,04R.8%:

Comparative figures are not required as this is the first year of
disclosure.

obobOobobOooooooooboon
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31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

.5 ADE *AVAB ES

.6

4

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group is as follows:

JARLO0000
O0o0000o00o000oo0oooon

N 2016
goooad gooodad
T B0l RMB’'000
goood goood
Within 1 year ooo CLC R 130,559
Over 1 year but within 2 years ooooooooog 34Rg94 828,322
Over 2 years oooog 30-233 22,946
949 9 kg, 981,827
s, \B *AVAB E& S000000
N 2016
goooad goooad
T B0 RMB’'000
goooad gooodd
C.ont 00
Receipts in advance oooo ,29,5!., 108,264
Accrued expenses oooo 9.9 30, 780,854
Amount due to a related company (Note (i)) 00o0ooooooooo@o 16,169
Amount due to an associate oooooooooo ELe.w 57,984
Amounts due to directors oooooo 48 3,600
Amount due to ultimate holding company ooooooooog ny 96 8,830
Amount due to ultimate controlling shareholder oooooooooo 29 210
Other payables (Note (ii)) OO00oO0oodoad (o , lli,?g. 1,970,832
., 600,9 2,946,743
e ~Snt ooo
Other payables (Note (ii)) 00oooogoad o 4603 67,717
,2,94.,50,i 3,014,460

Notes:

(i) The related company is a company controlled by Mr. Xu.

(i) Construction payables of approximately RMB1,122,937,000 (2016: (i) OODO0O0OoDOO0OOoOoOoDOOoOOoOooOD
RMB1,180,086,000) and payables for related to mineral exploration
and mining rights of approximately RMB480,763,000 (2016:
RMB468,350,000) are included in other payables.

The amounts due to a related company, an associate, directors,
ultimate holding company and Mr. Xu, ultimate controlling
shareholder, are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of

repayment.
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oo
01,122,937,00000 0 0 0000 OO
1,180,086,0000 D0 OO OODODOOODO
Oo00000o0ao48o,763,00000000
00000468,350,0000 [TJ
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gooooood

2 B, (& o OO
0 2016
oo0ooao ooooao
Notes *  B'00e RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
Bank loans aoood
— Secured OooQ (i) -29.9 R,

4

oboboobOooooooboooo

000000O00DOO0ooooooooo
O0000DOe41,326,0000 000000
00 02,164,386,0000 0 0O OOOOO
O00000004.75%06.83%0 0000
O00000000oO0oDoDoooooooo
O0000000D0DO0DOD1,392,654,000
00000000 oooooo0Ooao
221.627,0000 00 0000COOOODODO
000002890000 00000000
000000000 o0ooDmoomao
00000000 oOoooooooooo
O00000D00DOO0oOoOooooooo
Super Gracell Oriental Wised 0O O 0O O
0000000000 DoOOooOoooooo
0000000000000 o0oooo
0000000017000 000000
O0000DO0DO0oooOooooooood
23
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31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

2 BR™ », \IF(C"“ \ ED) o OOooo

 As 31 December 2016, secured bank loans of approximately ooooooooooooobooobobobon
RMB672,289,000, unsecured bank loans of approximately gbooboogoerz,289,0000 000000
RMB269,850,000 and other borrowings of approximately Oo0000gzesssoooodndnoonon
RMB17,090,000 were not renewed or rolled over upon maturity gogilvoeo0oo0 0 doooogg
and carried interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to 12.96% per O0dodoooa.75%012.96%0 0000

annum. As at 31 DA 00 0000000000000 0O0O0D0DOO0DDONO0OMONMD O00NOdODomOOmNdTs 0O0c 00O
0oo0oooOO0oO0oO0O0o0n0DnDog4,151,000
oooooooooOoOOoooooao
407,274,000 0 000000 OOOOO
gooogosor3ooo00onooonon
oboooooooooocobobooooon
oboooooobObooooooooon
goboooooie3g0o0000bOoonn
00000000 O0OoDOoOoDg23t

goooopooboooOoooo0ooooo
gooooooooboooOoOooooogo
4,239,838, 0000 000D OODOODOODO
gboogboo490,089,0000 0 000DO0O

goooog

obooooooooboooonoo
obooooooooboooonoo
obooooooooboooonoo
1,499,842,00000 0 0 O O OO O OO
2,473,678, 0000 0000 DOOOODODOO

ooooooon
ooobOooooboOoooocooooon

goooobbobbobooooooooaa
goobooooood

Annual Report2017 OO0 O OOOO

. A



China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000 1157
yv
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gooooood

O0Oooo

oobOO00ooooObOO0ooooobOoooon
tooooooooboobobobooobofn
uboboooobooaon

9 Bg-‘! h \ F(Ch\l N ED)
Other borrowings due for repayment, based on the scheduled
repayment terms set out in the loan agreements and without taking
into account the effect of any repayment on cross default clause
are as follows:

»d

2@ 2016
ooooao goooo
®  Beee RMB’000
ooooo ooooo

Within 1 year or on demand ooooood 3,0 1,3'® 37,070
Over 1 year but within 2 years ooooooogooo 0, RA . =
4,039,8-2 37,070

The Group's total borrowings are secured by the following assets: oooooooooooooooooo

2@ 2016

ooooo ooooo

Notes R Boeee RMB’000

oo ooooo ooooo

Property, plant and equipment oooooooo 14 ,3 3,63-2 1110,714
Coal mining rights ooooo 15 44 366 2,292,588
Lease prepayments oooooo 16 5,073
Inventories 0o 20 ,- 06 28,509
Trade and bill receivables ooooOooooooo 21 33,365

00000000000 00000O00
0000oooooooooOoooooo
0000000 000o0Oo0Ooooo0oOoao
0d00000o0ooooooooooon
00000 ooooooooooooOoon
00000000000 OQdaoaoSuper
Gracel Oriental WiseO OO OO QOO OO
00000o0ooooooooooooon
06,045,885,0000 0 0 00000000
00o0o0ooooooooOooOooooao
35(b)00 000

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total borrowings are also
secured by other receivables of a related company of which Mr.
Xu is the shareholder, a property held by Mr. Xu, Fortune Pearl’s
equity interest in the Company and the Group’s equity interest in
Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal,
Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace
and Oriental Wise. As at 31 December 2017, total borrowings
of approximately RMB6,045,885,000 were guaranteed by the
Company, certain subsidiaries of the Company, related parties and/
or Mr. Xu (Note 35(b)).

Annual Report2017 OOO0OO0OOOO

4



158 China Qinfa Group Limited 0000000000
- \
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 B e (o o O0ooo

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's total borrowings are also
secured by other receivables of a related company of which Mr.
Xu is the shareholder, a property held by Mr. Xu, a property held by
Mr. Xu Da, the executive director of the Company, Fortune Pearl's
equity interest in the Company and the Group's equity interest in
Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal,
Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace
and Oriental Wise. As at 31 December 2016, total borrowings
of approximately RMB6,033,401,000 were guaranteed by the
Company, certain subsidiaries of the Company, related parties, Mr.
Xu (Note 35(b)) and/or a former director.

000000000000 O00DO0O0OOn
000000ooooooooooooDoO
0000000000000 0D0O000
0d0000000ooooooooooon
0d000000ooooooooooon
000o00ooooooooooooon
0000000000 OodoaoodSuper
Gracel Oriental WiseO O OO OO OOO
00000O0oooooooooooon
06,033,401,0000 0 000000000
00000000000 D0OO00O35(b)d
Oo0oooooooo

Notes: oono
() Secured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to 7.28% () O0DoDO0DO0ooOO0DO0OO0O0O0O0OO0OO0oOO0O0
(2016: 4.35% to 7.28%) per annum as at 31 December 2017. 00000435%07.280d10 00000
4.35%07.28% 00000000
(i) Unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to (i) DoooOooOooUoCooDoooOooooo
7.20% (2016: 4.35% to 8.10%) per annum as at 31 December 2017. 00000435%07.20001000000
4.35%008.10% 00000000
(iiiy Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to 7.01% (i D0O00O0ODOO0DO0O0OC0CDOOO0ODOOO0OC0O
(2016: 12.00% to 13.50%) per annum as at 31 December 2017. 004.75%07.01%10 000 00O 12.00%
013.50% 00000000
. N
+PACE ED ECA A 4408 A & ;000000
N 2016
goooaa goooao
R Boeee RMB’000
goooaa ogoooao
At 1 January ogoooao 96,459, 79,047
Addition oo 12,843
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts (Note7) OO0O0OOOO0O0OOO0OO70 29, 4,568
At 31 December 00oo00ooon e .9 96,458

Annual Report 2017 OO OO00O0O0O

.



SCA* AT ESB ESA DD DE,DS

China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 00000000 159

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Q) B d g eMyef né e® ",,‘ﬂ

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group'’s consolidated equity is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

gooooood

,ISDDDDDDDD
Q)oooooo

o0ob0o0ooobOOoooooOOoooooo
oboobooooooon

(L')S-h?t,a!’él ‘Woo
0 2016
goooo goooo
e No. of
s lnbs Amg, Rl shares Amount
aad oo oo ga
Note Y B RMB'000
oad goooo goooa
A The,s8 d oo
Ordinary shares of HKD010each 0000010000000 40,000,000 000 , 3,000 | 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
b 0ra.# R8s ss ©dand 0000000000
1P pd
At 1 January oDoooo 934 38R 2 ot | 2278413985 193275
Shares issued in respect of oooooocoooono
payables capitalised oo (i) 215,000,000 17949
At 31 December gooooooo ,‘,,1-93,1l 39-8 2 yan 2,493,413,985 211,224
(i) On 25 December 2015, the Group consolidated certain interest () boooboOoooOooooooooood
payables owing by its subsidiaries to a financial institution of 00000bO0ooon0O0no141,533,000
approximately RMB141,533,000 (the “Payables”) and novated the omooomoooooooooooan
Payables from the subsidiaries of the Company to the Company goooooogoooooboooogn
as the principal debtor. The financial institution, on the same date, 0000000000000 00O0000
transferred the P(i Mmoooomd
gooo0oooooobooobooooan
o0o0ooooOoooooooooaaan
215,000,0000 0 OO O O OO0 O O
Oo0ooo2720 0000 0O0O0O0O0OO
0000000 0O48,822,000000 0 0O
58,480, 0000 0 MO0 0O0O0OOOOOOO
gooboooooooooooooooaa
ogooooao
000000000000 215,000,000000
gooboooooooooooooooaa
0000021,500,0000 00000000
017,949,0000 O 0 33,325,0000 OOO O
gooooz2r7,822o0000 I O0O0O0OOOO
oooooo
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On 31 December 2012, the Company issued convertible securities to
Fortune Pearl with a principal value of HKD194,700,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB157,872,000). The direct transaction
costs attributable to the convertible securities amounted to
approximately RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the option of the holder
of convertible securities into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time after 31 December 2012 at the initial conversion price of
HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the Company (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). While the convertible securities confer a right to
receive distributions at 3% per annum, the Company may, at its sole
discretion, elect to defer a distribution pursuant to the terms of the
convertible securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity date and are
redeemable at the option of the Company at 100% or 50% of the
principal amount of the convertible securities each time, on any
distribution payment date at the face value of the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible securities to be redeemed plus
100% or 50% (as the case may be) of distributions accrued to such
date.

As the convertible securities have no contractual obligation to
repay its principal nor to pay any distributions, they do not meet the
definition for classification of a financial liabilities under IAS 32. As
a result, the whole instrument is classified as equity, and respective
distributions if and when declared are treated as equity dividends.

The Group had elected to defer distribution payments for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB5,024,000). The Group had not elected to defer
distribution payments for the year ended 31 December 2016 of
HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,030,000).
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(i)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group includes: (i) the premium
arising from the issue of new shares in prior years; (ii) the expense
incurred in connection with issuance of new shares in prior years;
(iii) dividends declared and paid in prior years; and (iv) amount
transferred from share-based compensation reserve upon exercise
of share options.

On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 shares were allotted and issued to
the Creditor by capitalisation of part of the Payables. The excess of
the fair value of shares issued totalling HKD33,325,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB27,822,000) over the nominal value of the
total number of ordinary shares issued was credited to the share
premium account, after deducting the issuing expenses.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries of the Company and
the amount of share capital of the Company transferred and issued
to Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire equity interests in all
members of the Group as part of a reorganisation on 12 June 2009.

(i) Reserves

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to
wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group
are required to allocate certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Board of Directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of liquidation
and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be
capitalised as issued capital.
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(d) [?(', At(continued)

(i i i) Reserves (continued)

Specific reserve — maintenance and production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to
transfer an amount to specific reserve for the maintenance and
production funds and other related expenditures based on coal
production volume. The movement of specific reserve is as follows:

HLA0000000Oooo

(a)DDDDD

(ii0 Oooo
oooboooooood

oooboooooOoobOobOoboooboonn
oboooobOoooooboooooon
oooOooooobooooobooooon
oo

RMB’000
ogoood
Balance at 1 January 2016 ooo0oooOooooooo 215,997
Provision for the year ooog 33,211
Utilisation for the year ooog (28,183)
Balance at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 0o00o00o0ooooooooo
0oo0o00o0o0oooo aq R

Provision for the year ooono %3 ,
Utilisation for the year oooo (93,8 3)
Balance at 31 December 2017 0000000000000 000 3R

(iv) Exchange reserve

v)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(d).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the value of
directors and employee services in respect of share options granted
under a Pre-IPO share option scheme and a share option scheme
as set out in Note 30.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account
are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2016: Nil).
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(i)

Y veE EDS&NR E BASED *Av E &
e ";;S-h,e b‘ytené‘ Rn®
Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option”) whereby the grantees were granted the
rights to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option is 8,400,000
shares which were granted on 12 June 2009 with the subscription
price of HKD2.52 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from the Listing Date and
the options are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
option in cash.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

00000000 oooodn
Q)0D0000D0000000

(i
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0o000oo0o0obOooonnos,4o0,000000
oooooooOoboooOoOoboOoOoOoooon
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ooooooooooon

o0oooooooooooo

\lams" Y _an»to, tal

cyter v85 'h€ end fe® 18 7oy e

opooo

ooooo oooo opooo

Options granted to the grantees 8,400,000 30% on both of the first and second 10 years
—on 12 June 2009 anniversary of the Listing Date, 40% on 100

ooooooooo
gooooobooboo

the third anniversary of the Listing Date
000d0oooooooooOnODD30%0

0000000000 40%
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Q) % *,Sm& 4, tend& R ® (ontinued) Q)OODODDODDDDDOOOOooo
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Pre- (i) 0000000000000 OO0O0O0O
IPO Share Options are as follows: ogooooon
,A,,*ﬂéa,end’d3 IlemEv,,z. doooobooobooooooon
b, $ hndngp, ME, e;eyteﬁ
000000000
Bagplal ajtd BappCal
, _ B [ kpad  d.g® 3 EEmE,
); e'B.anee [ke e‘gvant E?v sa!‘i ;-v‘ed f‘e 7. Aav :!.
000000 000o0oo
0000 00o00o0oo
0000 0ooao ooo ooo ooo 0000 000
XD 000 000 0
oo oo oo 00
Em!k‘es
oo
Inaggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 126 9500 ‘Q,m) S0
oo 00000ooooo 00000000000
0ooo00ooooo
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(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Pre- (i) 0000000000000 O0O0O00O
IPO Share Options are as follows: (continued) O000000O0oo
,4,,*ﬂéa,en0d3 l'{emB,,,z.G goooobooobooooooon

Outstanding number of options

goooooooa
Balance at Effect of Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1January  retirement of during the 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2016 adirector year 2016
0opooo oopooo
oooo oo 0oooooo
ooooo oooo ooo ooo ooo ooooo oooo ooo
HKD '000 000 000 '000
o0 o0 oo oo o0
E§ . gt
oooo
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 126 1,200 (1,200) - -
ooooo* ooocoo ooooooooooo
ooooo 0000000000
Em !Qes
oo
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 126 10,800 1,200 (2,400) 9,600
oo ooocoo ooooooooooo
ooooo oopDooooooo
12,000 - (2,400) 9,600
*  Mr. Ma Baofeng retired and ceased to be an executive director of the * O00D0O0OOOOO0OO0O0O0ooooooooo
Company on 23 June 2016. Oo0o0ooooooooono
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(cy,q  ED) 00O
Q) Y eswe b yten& R n® (contined) )O0DDDODODOOOOOOooo
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Pre- (i) DO0000000O0O00O0O0O0OOO

IPO Share Options are as follows: (continued)

During the year, no share option (2016: Nil) under the Pre-IPO Share
Option was exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one share for every one existing
share held by the shareholders whose names are on the register
of members on 10 October 2011, the exercise price of the Pre-IPO
Share Options was adjusted from HKD2.52 to HKD1.26, and the
number of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at 10 October
2011 was adjusted from 7,800,000 to 15,600,000 thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.5 years (2016:
2.5 years). The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December 2017 was HKD1.26 (2016:
HKD1.26) per share.

(b) Sin h!tgn& R né

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written
resolutions passed on 12 June 2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise
of all options which then has been granted and have yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of the
shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. Unless approved by the shareholders, no
option may be granted to any person which if exercised in full would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to be granted to
such person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding share
option) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
new grant exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of such new grant.
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(b) S k,!t‘en&' R n® (continued) (b) O00O0Oooo
An option under the Share Option Scheme may be exercised in gododooooobobobobbboboobooo
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any doooooooooooboboboobobn
time during a period as determined by the board of directors of the oo0oobOOo0ooobooobOooooboio
Company, which must not be more than 10 years from the date of oo
the grant.
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () oooooooOoooooOoo
LAY Cen'a fal
cyter v 88 'n€ end-tef 1® e ylerl
goooo gooog gooooooo
Options granted to a director and employees 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years
—on 17 January 2012 on both of the first and 100
ooooooooooooo second anniversary
oodoooooooooo of the grant date

0o000040%0
ooboooboooon
00000030%

Options granted to directors and employees 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years
—on 30 April 2015 on both of the first and 100

o0o0OooOoOooOoOon second anniversary
0o0ooOoooooooad of the grant date

ooo00dnoao%n
oooooooon
00000030%
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30 Ek VVveE

(Cy,y y ED)
(b) S € »!tfn& R n® (continued)

(if) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Share

Options Scheme are as follows: (continued)
e R Pe ®d3 R CmMP, 06

EDSNR E BASED *Av E &

e 00000D0DOO0ODOOO0

ooo
(WOOOOOooo

(hoooooooOoOoOoODOoooood
OOooo

obobOoboboooooooooon

Outstanding number of options

goooooooo
Balance at Effect of Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1January  retirement of duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable Period price 2016 adirector year 2016
0ooooo oooooo
oooo oooo goooooo
goooo oooo ooa goo goo goo aooo ooa
HKD '000 '000 '000 '000
oo oo oo oo oa
Eg 'Bdg t
outo
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 17 January 2012
* J00O00O0OO0DOO0OO0ODOOoODOOoObOOOoDbOOo
Ogoo0ooooooooono
# 0000000000000 O0O0O0O0O0O
gooo0DObOOoOoOoooDbOoOoOoo
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(b) S k,!tené‘ R n® (continued) (b) O00O0O0ooo

(i) The number and weighted average exercise pricesof Share (i) DO0O0O0O0O000O0O00O0O0O0O0OO
Options Scheme are as follows: (continued) O0ooo
At 31 December 2017, the number of the exercisable shares under doooooooooooooooao
the Share Option Scheme was approximately 131,688,000 (2016: 00000000000 0131,688,0000
96,702,000) shares. 0oooonoooee,702,0000 [T
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option under go0oo0oboooboooboooooooo
the Share Option Scheme were granted and exercised (2016: Nil). oooooOobOoboooocoooooan

obOobOooOoomm

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had a weighted Ooooooooooooooooooo
average remaining contractual life of 7.2 years (31 December 2016: O00000000000007.2000
8.1 years). The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding 000o00ooooboobbosiAanmoon
share options as at 31 December 2017 was HKDO0.52 (2016: oObOooooobOOooooObOoooon
HKDO0.55) per share. Oo0o0oboobooooos2000n0onon

00o.5500m

3.- ACCA (R A EEC,® AC& 3 DOO0O0O0O0
As at 31 December 2017, the Company has executed corporate oooooooooooooboobobobon
guarantee to certain banks and other borrowing creditors with odoooooooobobobbobooooo
respect to general banking facilities and borrowings granted ooboodezs77,490,000000 000
to certain subsidiaries of the Company of approximately O00004,206,554, 0000 0000000
RMB2,577,490,000 (2016: RMB4,206,554,000). In addition, as gooobooooboooboooooo
at 31 December 2017, the Company and certain subsidiaries 00300000000 oooooO
of the Company have executed corporate guarantee to certain O00000000o0ooooooooono
banks and an other borrowing creditor (2016: certain banks) with 0000000000000 0e56,832,000
respect to borrowings granted to an associate of approximately O0O0ooobOoDnOne40,600,0000 00
RMB656,832,000 (2016: RMB640,600,000) as disclosed in Note gobobooobooooboooonoo
35(c). o0ooOooOoooooooo
The Group has not recognised any financial liability (2016: Nil) in 00000000000 DOO0oOoooon
respect of the guarantees granted for general banking facilities g0ob00oboooooooooooooo
of the associate as the directors of the Company considered that 0Moobooobooboooobooon
it was not probable that the repayments of the borrowings from oooobobOoobooboooboon
the associate would be in default and the estimated fair value is ud
insignificant.
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3.,‘\|E&A‘!S- A\IA(E E\lUA\lD,m 3,000 noooogouoooua
A o &.! & A
v A Sy, \IA\IC A Ey (
(a)('_‘aﬁg’,ese alf® - ‘ne,,g ) 000000
20 2016
ooooao ooooagd
B00e RMB’000
goooo ooooo
—— e a[ﬁSeg gooo
Loans and receivables Jddd00o0oooooo
(including cash and cash equivalents), O0000MMmOoOooooon
measured at amortised cost .93, &, 448,496
%y alla'."l‘t's gooo
Financial liabilities, measured at Jddd00oOoOoooon
amortised cost 9906 -%-2 9,931,294

W o al,s knmga@ @ n'eJR@ 'Bs and pa ©s

(i)

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and currency
risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bill
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customer operates and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
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3., (ACA® s. AAGE E
NS ey ACA (s:r
(b),, ‘e al.s knhnag ne n eﬁ t@s and "& €s (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

A\ID,N 3?DDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
Eq &chy | ED ooo

(W OOOO0ODOO0OO0ODOOooo

() O0OOOooo

N

At the reporting date, 48.9% (2016: 64.4%) of the net trade and bill
receivables was due from the five largest trade customers within
the coal business segment. These five largest trade customers
include a state-owned enterprise in the PRC and customers with
good past credit records with the Group.

In view of the history of business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history of the receivables due from
them, management believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group's outstanding receivable balance due from
these customers. Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the debtors and whether there is any dispute with the
debtors. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in Note 31, the Group does not provide
any other guarantee which would expose the Group to credit risk as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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3.-,‘\| A"& AA(E E\l A\ID,N 3,uuoooogoagouoonbn
'\E‘S- h-— (A A S-'? . Eq &chy | ED Doo
(b)»— ‘™R a s knhnag ne n fﬁ tes and M €s (continued) (b) 0000000000 0ooo
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (00000 0Oooo
As at 31 December 2016
goooooooooooo
Total Withinone ~ More than one
Carrying  Undiscounted yearor  yearandless
amount cash flow ondemand than five years
oood ooono oo
oood goooo ooo 0ooo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo goooo ooooo goooo
CM,&‘ e 00
Trade payables oooooo 981,827 981,827 981,827 -
Financial liabilities included 0000000000000
in other payables 2,838,479 2,838,479 2,838,479 -
Borrowings oo 6,043,271 6,043,271 6,043,271 -
9,863,577 9,863,577 9,863,577 -
ot 8 nt ooo
Financial liabilities included 0000000000000
in other payables 67717 80,800 - 80,800
9,931,294 9,944,377 9,863,577 80,800
Maximum exposure of financial 0000000000000 310
guarantee contracts (Note 31) 640,600 683,882 683,882 -
The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts oob0ooooObOOoooobOoooooo
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle Oooodooooooooooooood
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that dooooooooooocOooomood
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on gobooobooooooboooooon
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers oooboooocoOooobooocoooo
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under O0000o0o0oooOoooooooon
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change O00DO00oODOoo0ooOoOoooOooooaoan
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming under oobooooobooooboooooo

the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.
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(i) Liquidity risk (cony 0 T63nued) () 0DO0O0OO00O0Oooo

The y 0 T6a 0 T6b O T6le below summa 0 T6r 0 T63ses yhe ma 5.5(y 0 MeW)d.b{ri)0l64/ [0 Tei)05(a)0.5(n)0.B(d)0[5(H10 Teys3s of k
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G K Es_A‘v s AAA(ES:,E
b-— A

(b),, ‘e al.s knhnag ne n fﬁ t@s and M €s (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

AD-A 3,00nooooooooooonn
Eq &chy | ED ooo

(W ODOO0O0ODDO0OO0D000Oooo
(00000 0Oooo

N

As 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB8,852,285,000. As disclosed in Note 27, certain
borrowings amounted to RMB2,805,712,000 have yet been renewed
or rolled over upon maturity and carried interest at 4.75% to 6.83%
per annum. The liquidity of the Group is dependent on its ability to
implement the measures to improve the Group’'s immediate liquidity
and cash flows as described in Note 1.2(c).

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from pledged and
restricted deposits, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out as below:

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s
net borrowings at the reporting date:

udoouoooooooboboboobobobn
O0o0ob0o0o0Oo0oDbodDs,ss2,285,00000
oo0o002r000000D02805,712,000
ooooooooooobbobooobDbD
4.75%06.83%0 00000000000
oo0o0oODOOoOOOO0OO0OO0012(c)DO0O0O
oobOoooobOoooooOoooooo
ao

(i0ooo

oooooooooooobbobboooo
ooooooooooooboboooboboboO
oob0OooooOobOOoooobOoooooo
oobOO0ooooObOO0oooobOoboooon
ubobboooboboooboboon

gooo

ooooooooooobobbobooooo
oon
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D_A 3,ubonooooooooooood

ooo

(b)»— ‘e a .S kWﬁg n® n Eﬁ s and"sl‘ €s (continued) (b) O000o00do0fdo0d0dooo
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued) (i DO00O0Oooo

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in the interest rates of variable rate net borrowings prevailing at
the reporting date, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax by approximately
RMB31,198,000 (2016: increase/decrease the Group's loss after
tax by approximately RMB41,553,000) and increase/decrease the
Group’'s accumulated losses by approximately RMB31,198,000
(2016: RMB41,553,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit/loss after tax and consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied to re-measure
those floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the
reporting date. The impact on the Group’s profit/loss after tax
and consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.

gboood

ooooooooOoooboboooboonn
ooooOoOO0oO0oooooboooODbOOoaioo
gbboobooOoooboooboon
obDoobObOooboobooboon
ooooobboasi19s.000000OOO
ooobooOoobOoobOoooooooo
41,553,0000 00000000000 OO
Oo0ooooasi198000000000000ODO
0 0 41,553,0000 I

gooobDob0ooooooooooboboon
oo0b00ooobOoOO0oooobooooon
oo0O0ooobObOO0ooooooooon
ooObO0ooooobOO0oooooObooooon
doooooooooobobobobooon
gooooOooooooooooooon
oooooooooooobobobobDDbDO
dooooooooooooooobobon
oooogono

(iv) Foreign currency risk (ivyoOooo

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through
the People’'s Bank of China or other institutions authorised to
buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through purchases giving rise to cash balances that are
denominated in USD, while all the other operations of the Group
are mainly transacted in RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the
RMB value of purchase costs of commodities that are denominated
in foreign currencies.
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(b),, ‘e al.s knhnag ne n fﬁ t@s and M €s (continued)
(AN),<e,e 8n ﬂ"gh ),s K (continued)

N

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

gooooood

,0b0b0b0ooouoooaaan

ADDD
(W ODOO0O0ODDO0OO0D000Oooo
(v yOOOOooo

ubbooboboobooboobodb
tboooooooooooobooobobnb
oobooooboboooboooao

0 2016

oooono ooooo

P phemmadd Denominated

n % in USD

goooo goooo

Y B0 RMB'000

oooono ooooo

Cash and cash equivalents oooooobooo 440 441

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the foreign exchange risk associated with
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities will not be significant.

d)a.k 1°8 & rag al'® »'5’, ne ¢

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

%
33CA™ A Cy, E\l <
At each reporting date, capital commitments outstanding not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

todooooooooooboboboboood
ooooooooooobobobobobooo
oo

d)i0noooooon

oob0OooooOobOOoooobOoooooo
oobooobOoOooooobobOoooon
oboooobooooooooo

330000

ooooooooooooooobobD
ooooooooooooo

Property, plant and equipment

goboobooao

2@ 2016
oooono ooogoo
® B0 RMB’'000
oooono googoo

l-,,n-' 45,692
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34 h"‘E A

{ EASES
Q) eses & gssee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

20000

Q)oooooooo
go000oo0o0ooooooooooog

cancellable operating leases are as follows: ooooo
.0 2016
goooo ooooo
®  B000 RMB’000
goooao goood
Within 1 year ooo 96 1,086
Over 1 year but within 5 years oooooog 793
9% 1,879

The Group leases properties and vessels under non-cancellable
operating lease agreement. The lease terms are between one month
and three years (2016: two and three years). The agreements do not
include an extension option.

As at 31 December 2017, future minimum lease payments expected
to be received by the Group in relation to non-cancellable sub-
leases of operating leases amounted to RMB240,000 (2016: Nil).

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-

doooooooooooboboboobibd
gobobboobobooobbooooon
obobDooomoobooooboooon

ao

boboouoboobobobobooboood
dooouooooooooboobobibod
ObObOO0oooob24o0.00000000O0OO

Ok

(Wwoooooooa
000000000000 O0OO0O0O0O00

cancellable operating leases are as follows: ooooao
,20 2016
goooad goood
®  B000 RMB’'000
goooaa goooaa
Within 1 year oo0o 03 8,569

The Group leases vessels under various agreements which typically

run for an initial period of one to six months (2016: three to six
months). The agreements do not include an extension option.

3R _F A ED R

v A\ISAC h\l&

The Group has conducted certain transactions with related parties
of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, and his close family members; (ii) Mr. Xu Da, an executive
director and his close family members; (iii) Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), a company controlled
by Mr. Xu; (iv) Yuanfan Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yuanfan Technology”),
a company controlled by Mr. Xu Da and Qinfa Industry; (v) Tongmei
Qinfa, an associate; (vi) Bo Hai Investment Limited (“Bo Hai
Investment”), a company controlled by Mr. Xu; and (vii) Fortune

Pearl, the ultimate holding company of the Company.
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3REAEDR Vv ASAC 4, Sy D) 3R 000 0o0oo
Particulars of transactions between the Group and the above ooobooobobooobobooooboog

related parties for the year are as follows:

Qre nglage tef Q)00O000
afe fanaMe 0t AR o, & Bpndng
R Pase #d3 R emE, Satz Remp,
oooooooooooo ooooooog
ooooo ooooooo
0 2016 0 2016
0oooo 0oooo 0oooo 0oooo
Y B RMB'000 Y Beee RMB'000
oooono oooono oooono oooono
Sales of coal to goooooOooog
—Tongmei Qinfa 783 1,760 80 1,060
Purchase of coal from oooooooooo i
—Tongmei Qinfa o, 77149 AN ] ) 548,495
W gaan®es pNEdME ped g, ts (wOODDOOOD
2@ 2016
ooooao ooooo
®  Boeee RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Guarantees of borrowings provided by 000000 O0Oooooo
Mr. Xu and his close family members ooono 46 90 7,575,910
Guarantees of borrowings provided by doooooooooooo
Mr. Xu Da and his close family members oooa ,,45,490 7,345,990
Guarantees of borrowings provided by ooboobooooo )
Qinfa Industry a2 1,000 2,772,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by dooDooDoooood ) ‘
Yuanfan Technology o L1 152,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by 0o0D0DooDoooogd
Bo Hai Investment 3,0 0,000 3,010,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by ooooooooo
Fortune Pearl 3,0 0,000 3,010,000

Annual Report2017 OOO0OO0OOOO

4

o



182 China Qinfa Group Limited 0000000000

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

gooooooo
31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

3R EAED™R Vv® AGAC 4, Sy D) 3R 0000000
) gaan®®s pNEdLaf p¥d g, ¥ J)ooooooooooo

N 2016
ogoooag ooooao
T B0ee RMB’000
goooad goood

Guarantees given by the Group for borrowings oopoooood
obtained by Tongmei Qinfa oooooooooo 656#3.2 640,600

(

(d)(e)managnent;semgl‘emﬂgvaten d00D00OO0DooOOn

Key management personnel are those persons holding positions
with authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including the directors of the Company. Key management personnel oo
remuneration are as follows:

ubbooboooobobooooboad
doooooooooooboboboobobn
tooooooo@moobooooooag

,20 2016

ooooo ooooad

*  B'00e RMB’000

ooooo ooooo

Directors fee oooo 4 Rg, 3,319
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind O0o00o0oO0oooo -',401., 8,702
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes dooooooo ,20 133
Share-based payments ooooooooo 4.,‘-, 1,913
3,3, 14,067
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective in these consolidated

financial statements.
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goooooooo

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Amendments

oooodoooooloOO
ooooooOo28000000

Amendments to IFRSs

O00O000Ooo0oOdo

IAS 40 Amendments

O00O0O0o0Oo40000000

IFRS 2 Amendments

0o00000ooDooO2000000
IFRS 4 Amendments

goboobOooo4b000000

IFRS 9
go0oOooOoooooen
IFRS 15
00000000 0asa
IFRS 15 Amendments

Oo0oooooOooisodooo

IFRIC — Interpretation 22

ooooooooood
0000220

Amendments to IFRSs

oopooooooood

IFRS 9 Amendments

oooooooooonnoooon

IFRS 16

00000 DOoOoien

IFRIC — Interpretation 23

oooDooDoooood
0000230

IFRS 17

gooooooooairda

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
god00O0ooOo0oO0oooooOobooooboooon

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle
000000000000 0oO0Ooooooooooog
Transfers of Investment Property
oooooo
Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
o0o00o0DoDoooooooooo
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
000o0o0o0D0oooo40000D000oon
oooooooooonnooon
Financial Instruments
oooo
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
oooood
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
dbodbooooooooisooooood
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
oooooDooooo

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle
Ooo00o0ooOo0opoooooooooooooooood
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
oooooooooood

Leases

oo

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Ooooooooono

Insurance Contracts
gogod

To be determined*
oo=*

1 January 2018
ooooooooo
1 January 2018
ooooooooo
1 January 2018

ooooooooo
1 January 2018

oboobooooo

1 January 2018
oooooooon
1 January 2018
ooooDooooo
1 January 2018

ooooooooo
1 January 2018
gpoooooooo

1 January 2019
oooooobooon
1 January 2019
oooDoooboooo
1 January 2019
oooooooon
1 January 2019
0oo0oDoooDoooo

1 January 2021
ooooooono
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*  0On 17 December 2015, the IASB issued “Effective Date of Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28" This update defers the effective date of the
amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture” that the IASB issued in September
2014. Early application of these amendments continues to be
permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements except for the following:

2 S-ng alp® ,t" ne ng
IFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a) classification and
measurement of financial assets; b) impairment of financial assets;
and c) general hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and measurement of
financial assets, IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of IFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of each of
the subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Further, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss and that cumulative
fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon
derecognition of the investment. The Group has assessed that its
financial assets currently measured at amortised cost will continue
with their respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of IFRS 9.
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_» &Q‘Am al vt" ne ng (continued)
With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such
changes in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss. The Group
currently does not have any financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss and therefore this new requirement will
not have any impact on the Group on adoption of IFRS 9.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 has adopted
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model required under IAS 39. In general, the expected credit
loss model requires an entity to assess the change in credit risk
of the financial asset since initial recognition at each reporting
date and to recognise the expected credit loss depending on the
degree of the change in credit risk. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group'’s trade
receivables and other financial assets. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the directors of the Company expect that the adoption
of IFRS 9 is unlikely to result in significant impact on the Group’s
financial performance.

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
IFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced. The Group
currently does not apply any hedge accounting and therefore this
new requirement will not have any impact on the Group on adoption
of IFRS 9.
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Under IFRS 16 a lessee recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is treated similarly to other
non-financial assets and depreciated accordingly and the liability
accrues interest. This will typically produce a front-loaded expense
profile (whereas operating leases under IAS 17 would typically have
had straight-line expenses) as an assumed linear depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and the decreasing interest on the liability
will lead to an overall decrease of expense over the reporting period.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate
implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use their incremental
borrowing rate.

As with IFRS 16’s predecessor, IAS 17, lessors classify leases as
operating or finance in nature. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset. Otherwise a lease is classified
as an operating lease.

For finance leases a lessor recognises finance income over the
lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment. A lessor recognises operating
lease payments as income on a straight-line basis or, if more
representative of the pattern in which benefit from use of the
underlying asset is diminished, another systematic basis.
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Instead of applying the recognition requirements of IFRS 16
described above, a lessee may elect to account for lease payments
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis for the following two types of leases:

— leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no
purchase options — this election is made by class of underlying
asset; and

— leases where the underlying asset has a low value when new
(such as personal computers or small items of office furniture)
— this election can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
IFRS 16 in the future may affect amounts reported and related
disclosure. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until the Group performs a detail
review.

EDAEAD ¥ AEC, ™4 (™ Vv
The directors of the Company consider the immediate and
ultimate holding companies of the Group to be Fortune Pearl, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
controlling shareholder to be Mr. Xu, the sole shareholder of Fortune
Pearl.
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Up to the date of this report, the following legal proceedings are oooooooboooooboooooo
still outstanding. gdd

(i) Litigation claims relating to the performance of the () DoooDoooooooooo

contract execution between Liaoning Zhonghuitong
Asset Management Limited (“Zhonghuitong”) and
Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy

On 29 November 2012, Xinglong Coal acquired certain coal
mining machineries at a consideration of approximately
RMB94,708,000. On 27 June 2013, Xinglong Coal settled
the purchase of machineries by way of bill payables of
approximately RMB94,708,000 which was guaranteed
by Zhonghuitong. Xinglong Coal eventually repaid the
bill payables of approximately RMB59,021,000 and
failed to honor its remaining obligation of approximately
RMB35,687,000. As a guarantor, Zhonghuitong settled the
principal and interest of the bill payables of approximately
RMB35,687,000 on behalf of Xinglong Coal. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, Zhonghuitong applied to
the Liaoning Shenyang Municipal Intermediate People’'s
Court to order Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy to
repay approximately RMB35,687,000, late penalty charges
of approximately RMB3,788,000 and interest charges of
approximately RMB6,888,000, totalling approximately
RMB46,363,000, in addition to the court litigation costs.
The interest payment was calculated on the basis of
0.05% per day from 28 June 2014 until the settlement. An
aggregate amount of approximately RMB46,363,000 had
already been recognised as payables to Zhonghuitong
included in other payables in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015.
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(a) b, $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)
(i) Litigation claims relating to the performance of the

contract execution between Liaoning Zhonghuitong
Asset Management Limited (“Zhonghuitong”) and
Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to
the judgements of the courts in the PRC, the Group was
ordered to make immediate repayment of payables to the
plaintiffs, with additional corresponding legal costs of
approximately RMB279,000, which have been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
successfully reached an agreement with Zhonghuitong
on a monthly instalment settlement plan for a period of
29 months. According to the settlement plan, late penalty
charges of approximately RMB3,788,000 and interest of
approximately RMB6,888,000 were waived. As a result
of the foregoing, the Group reversed late penalty charges
of approximately RMB3,788,000 and interest charges of
approximately RMB6,888,000 in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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(a) b, $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)
(i) Litigation claims relating to unsettled property,

plant and equipment contract sums with several
suppliers of the Group

As at 31 December 2015, there were several litigation
claims initiated by the suppliers against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of overdue payables in
relation to purchase of machineries with an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB132,206,000 and the late
penalty charges of approximately RMB6,605,000 and
corresponding legal costs of approximately RMB108,000.
An aggregate amount of approximately RMB138,919,000
had already been recognised as payables to these
suppliers included in other payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to
the judgements of the courts in the PRC, the Group was
ordered to make immediate repayment of payables of
approximately RMB137118,000 to the plaintiffs. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group successfully
reached an agreement with certain plaintiffs at a PRC
court on a settlement plan with an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB26,551,000 that will be repaid by
monthly installment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, pursuant to
the judgements of the courts in the PRC, the Group was
ordered to make immediate repayment of payables of
approximately RMB2,206,000 to another two plaintiffs.
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(a) b, $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)
(iii) Litigation claims relating to unsettled considerations

in relation to the acquisition of coal mining rights of
Xinglong Coal mine and Hongyuan Coal mine

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were
litigation claims initiated by two of the previous owners (the
“Previous Owners”) of Xinglong Coal Mine and Hongyuan
Coal Mine against the Group to demand immediate
repayment of the unsettled considerations with an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB51,338,000 in
relation to the acquisitions of coal mining rights of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine in 2013. Pursuant
to the judgements of the Shanxi Shuozhou Municipal
Intermediate People’s Court dated 20 April 2015 and 10
December 2015, the Group was ordered to pay the Previous
Owners the unsettled consideration of approximately
RMB51,338,000, the late penalty charges and interest
charges of RMB3,000,000 and corresponding legal costs
of approximately RMB350,000. On 23 July 2015 and 4
January 2016, the Group lodged appeal applications to
the Shanxi Provincial Higher People’s Court. The amount
of approximately RMB54,688,000 had already been
recognised as payables to the Previous Owners included in
other payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
successfully reached an agreement with one of the
Previous Owners on a settlement plan with an aggregate
amount of RMB13,000,000 that would be repaid by monthly
installment of RMB1,000,000. Accordingly, such litigation
claim was released.
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(a) b, $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)
(iii) Litigation claims relating to unsettled considerations

in relation to the acquisition of coal mining rights
of Xinglong Coal mine and Hongyuan Coal mine

(continued)

Pursuant to the judgement of the Shanxi Province High
People’s Court dated 12 October 2017, the Group was
ordered to make immediate repayment of payable to
another Previous Owner, with additional late penalty
charges and interest charges of RMB3,000,000 and
corresponding legal costs of approximately RMB248,000.
As a result of the foregoing, the Group further recognised
the corresponding legal costs of approximately
RMB248,000 in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, another previous
owner of Hongyuan Coal filed a lawsuit against the
Group to demand immediate repayment of the unsettled
considerations of approximately RMB87,423,000 and the
late penalty charges and interest charges of approximately
RMB14,487,000 in relation to the acquisitions of coal
mining rights of Hongyuan Coal Mine. The amount
of approximately RMB87,423,000 had already been
recognised as payables to this previous owner included
in other payables in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016. As a result
of the foregoing, the Group further recognised the late
penalty charges and interest charges of approximately
RMB14,487,000 in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the judgement of the Shanxi Province High
People’s Court dated 16 June 2017, the Group was ordered
to make immediate repayment of payable to this previous
owner, with additional corresponding legal costs and
interest charges. As a result of the foregoing, the Group
further recognised the late penalty charges, interest
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(a) b $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)
(iv) Litigation claims relating to default of repayment of

bank borrowings

In 2015, a bank filed a lawsuit in Zhuhai Municipal
Intermediate People’s Court against the Group to demand
immediate repayment of the defaulted bank borrowings
of approximately RMB148,882,000 and interest charges
of approximately RMB328,000 respectively. The principal
of approximately RMB148,882,000 and respective interest
charges of approximately RMB328,000 had already
been recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses
included in other payables respectively in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015.

In 2016, another bank filed lawsuit in Shanxi Province
High People’'s Court against the Group to demand
immediate repayment of the defaulted bank borrowings of
approximately RMB492,444,000 and interest charges of
approximately RMB13,068,000 respectively. The principal
of approximately RMB492,444,000 and respective interest
charges of approximately RMB13,068,000 had already
been recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses
included in other payables respectively in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the judgements, several bank accounts of
the Group were frozen for one year from the date of the
judgements and the coal mining rights of the Group
and two properties of the Group's related companies
were frozen for three years from the date of judgement.
In addition, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of the aforesaid balances.

In 2017, two banks filed lawsuit in Zhuhai Municipal
Intermediate People’'s Court against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of the bank borrowings of
approximately RMB210,771,000 and interest charges of
approximately RMB11,110,000 respectively. The principal
of approximately RMB210,771,000 and respective interest
charges of approximately RMB11,110,000 had already
been recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses
included in other payables respectively in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017. Up
to the date of this report, these litigation claims are still in
progress.
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(a) b $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)
(vi) Litigation claims relating to the performance of the

contract execution between Yu Lin Zhong Kuang
Wan Tong Construction Limited Company (“Yu Lin
Zhong Kuang”) and Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan
Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a
litigation claim initiated by Yu Lin Zhong Kuang against the
Group to demand immediate repayment of overdue payable
in relation to construction of coal mining infrastructure.
The amount of approximately RMB101,323,000 had already
been recognised as payable to this supplier included in
other payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the judgement issued by Shanxi Provincial
Xinzhou City Intermediate People’s Court dated 9
January 2017, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of payable of approximately RMB130,769,000,
which including the aforesaid payable to this supplier
of approximately RMB101,323,000 and late penalty
charges of approximately RMB16,345,000 and interest
of approximately RMB13,101,000. As a result of the
foregoing, the Group further recognised the late penalty
charges of approximately RMB16,345,000 and interest of
approximately RMB13,101,000 in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

On 22 February 2017, the Group appealed to Shanxi
Provincial High People’s Court. Pursuant to the judgement
dated 21 July 2017, Shanxi Provincial High People’s Court
concluded that in the absence of reliable evidence on the
valuation of construction work performed by the plaintiff,
the original judgement was overturned and a retrial was
ordered. Up to the date of this report, the retrial has
yet been arranged. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no further provision for these litigation claims
was required to be made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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(a) b, $ Bnd‘ng L& teﬁ (continued)

Other than the disclosure of above, as at 31 December 2017,
the Group was not involved in any other material litigation
or arbitration. As far as the Group was aware, the Group had
no other material litigation or claim which was pending or
threatened against the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group was the defendant of certain non-material litigations,
and also a party to certain litigations arising from the ordinary
course of business. The likely outcome of these contingent
liabilities, litigations or other legal proceedings cannot be
ascertained at present, but the directors of the Company
believe that any possible legal liability which may be incurred
from the aforesaid cases will not have any material impact on
the financial position of the Group.

W reey a8 a.an?es ss € d

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued the
guarantees to certain banks and an other borrowing creditor
(2016: certain banks) in respect of borrowings made by Tongmei
Qinfa, an associate of the Group. Under the guarantee, the
Group that is a party to the guarantee are jointly and severally
liable for any of the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa from those
banks and an other borrowing creditor (2016: those banks).

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of
the Group at 31 December 2017 under the guarantees issued
is a portion of the outstanding amount of the borrowings of
Tongmei Qinfa amounting to approximately RMB656,832,000
(2016: RMB640,600,000).
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Information about the statement of financial position of the ubbooboboobooboobooan
Company at the end of the year is as follows: ud
.0 2016
goood goood
R Boeee RMB’000
goooad goooad
qere & plese d ooooo
Investments in subsidiaries ooooooono —
C & st ¢ oooo
Other receivables oooooo B 13
Amounts due from subsidiaries gooooooo 73,243
Cash and cash equivalents OO0o0Oo0ooono 43 BI525]
4.99 76,781
.8 ntralk®s 0ooo
Other payables ooDood (a.9.9 (104,183)
§¢ Entlak®s ooDooo (4. 340) (27.402)
§ flakt®s o0oQ (4. 340) (27,402)
CQIE [and €se . Bs ooooo
Share capital oo q 99902 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible Securities ooooooooo 56,93 156,931
Deficit oo 3 408l (395,557)
Cayhi®é % ¢ oooo (4 340) (27,402)

ooooooooooobobbobooooo
obooboobobOooooooo

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of
China Qinfa Group Limited on 27 March 2018.

i

~, Da Ba- ae
oo oo

Director Director
oo oo

Annual Report2017 OOO0OO0OOOO

ey

i



200

39S AE E

China Qinfa Group Limited OO0 O0O0O0OOO0O

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gooooooo
31December2017 DO O00OO0OOOOOOO

%
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Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

% 1
q & VAGCA 8 pye- E

00000000 O0ooo

doooooooooooboboboobibd

gooooa
below:
!,,; tal Sk
s i Rt d ’él
S.hg &I‘,e bf‘ (& en‘vtﬁ cen"‘hed &%hng (2 gm; ﬁa“en 13 #"'# hed 6 ";
(Y T L 17 TR L B b 8 i e lBc
ooo
gooo gooooo gooo
00 goooo ooo ooooo 000 oooo ooooo oooo oo
RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMBI000
goooo ooooo O0ooo ooooo ooooo goooo oooooc  COoOpoo ooOooo
Notes ~ Note29b)  Note29(d)i) Note 29(c) Note29(d)iv) ~ Note29(d)y)
0o 00290b)  0O29(d)() 0029() 0029d)iv)  0029(d)v)
At1January 2016 gooooooooo 193275 321,3% 45711 156,931 658,719 (30,680) 2717 (1,325,435) 41692
i mER B 0o00oooog
§8 ‘pv{ﬂ &
Loss for the year oooo - - - - - - - (68,234) (68,234)
Other comprehensive loss oooooo
Foreign currency translation differences gooooo - - - - - (1152) - - (1152)
Total other comprehensive loss 0ooooooo - - - - - (1152) - - (1152)
Total comprehensive loss gooooo - - - - - (1152) - (68,234) (69,386)
afe s 0V BRengs,  0000000DOD
fobddf et ¥ 0000000
Issuance of shares in respect 0oooooooooooon
of payables capitalised 29(0)i) 17949 21822 @5771) - - - - - -
Distribution relating to goooooooooo
convertible securities 29(0) - (5,030) - - - - - - (5,030)
Equity-settled share-based payments 0000o0000oo00oon - - - - - - 5322 - 5322
Share options lapsed goooooo - - - - - - (1949 1949 -
Total transactions with 0oooooooooa
equity shareholders 17949 21 @5 = = = 3313 1949 m
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 gooooooooooooo
000000000 ok B4 &% i o 5.8) RCTIE RN
sl M F R 0o0oooonoo
(] o LE S
Profitfor the year oooo M3 003
Other comprehensive income oooooo
Foreign currency translation differences 0oooono AR AR
Total other comprehensive income 0ooooooo Al AR
Total comprehensive income 00oonoo Al 03 g3
afe ts eV WnEngs, 0000000000
i,,&dd{f?.,,eﬁ.ﬂ 0000000
Equity-settled share-based payments 0ooooooooooooo 9 -
Share options lapsed oooooon (03 3
Total transactions with goooooooooo
equity shareholders (.9) A3 e
At31 December 2017 0000000000000 ) ot 34§ %93 oiy, 9 300 L300 (aegey g
*  These reserves accounts comprise the deficit of RMB372,495000 ~ 0000000000 O0OOOOOOOO
(2016: RMB395,557,000) in the statement of financial position of the 0 0 0372,495,000000 0 0D 0D OOOOAO
Company. 395,557,00000 (1]

#  Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of Qinfa Investment Limited acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation and the nominal value of the share
issued by the Company in exchange.
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